Consolidated Balance Sheet

(Unit: million

(Unit: million yen) US dollars)
As of March 31,
2012 2013 2013

(ASSETS)

Cash and deposits .................................................................................. 315,187 457,51 7 4,864

Call [QANS -+++++eerrerrerraresneesueesseessessseenseensessessesseesnsesseessessseensesnsesnsessesnsenns 249,200 391,200 4,159

Monetary claims bought .......................................................................... 294‘324 285’082 3,031

Money held in trust 48,266 56,251 598

SECUILIES - +++++ersrerrrermresnmemneenseesseeastaaseesesuresaresseeaneesseesseesseeaseenesanenarennnenns 27,038,793 29,390,963 312,503

OGNS -+ srerreesmresneesseesseesseaaseesesasesanesaeeeneaaseesseense e st e neeanesaresan e e e e eneenneens 3,413,620 3,140,990 33,397

Tangib|e fIXEA QSSELS errrrrrrarrarearnrririiiiii i 1,254,685 1 ,236,270 13,144
[ e [E PSSP 809,048 794,387 8,446
Buildings 430,318 429,573 4,567
Leased asSets - errerreiiiiiiiiinniiiiiiiiisse s e 1 ‘681 7,600 80
Construction in PrOGIESS -+rssrressnesrasssssssstasttist sttt 9,747 524 5
Other tangible fixed assets:- 3,889 4,183 44

Intangible fixed assets- 211,055 215,457 2,290
Software «--«eweeeeee - 71,036 67,479 77
GOOTWIIl ++veermeermeemmeerserseeerseensesnseseeseeseesseesseesseesseenseesesnsesnsessesneesseess 63,654 69,103 734
Other intangible fixed assets ««« e 76,364 78,874 838

Reinsurance receivable -------- 41,751 32,861 349

Other assets ----eeeeeeeees 307,973 390,844 4,155

Deferred tax assets ««- e 284,562 67,636 719

Customers' liabilities for acceptances and guarantees «+«««+-eeusverreennns 20,074 33,446 355

Reserve for possible 10an 10SSES+««+ urrrrrrrmriiiiie (10,684) (4,110) (43)

Reserve for possible investment [0SSes «++x«+ vrererrenieiniiiis (142) - -

TOLAl ASSELS «++vevreereerrrerererseesrerarerarersseanseasessresaeesseesseessesssesaseesnesnens 33,468,670 35,694,411 379,525

(LIABILITIES)

Policy reserves and others ««« - e 30,489,920 31,703,858 337,095
Reserves for outstanding Claims -+« ««eeseeeneimimiii 239,320 298,557 3,174
Policy reserves -« e 29,862,729 31,012,539 329,745
Reserve for policyholder dividends - 387,871 392,761 4,176

Reinsurance payable: - uoveveenene - 12,681 16,541 175

Subordinated DONAS ««+rrrrerrrarmrii 1 48’652 1 54,584 1 ,643

ONEr [IADIlIHIES --+«++vervrerrreereerreersrerresreenrerrerareseeseesseesseesseesseessessesnesnnens 1,188,105 1,496,592 15,912

Reserve for employees' retirement benefits:oeveiemnii, 433,791 439,734 4,675

Reserve for retirement benefits of directors,
executive officers and corporate auditors:: -« xweeemmnininn 2,538 2,350 24

Reserve for possible reimbursement of prescribed claims -«-----««-eeeeueees 1,000 700 7

Reserves under the special [aws -+« - srrrermmmmmmn 74,831 89,228 948
Reserve for price fluctuations:« -« e 74,831 89,228 948

Deferred tax liabilities <« rreererrrrrmrmmirir 9,71 9 1 3,51 1 143

Deferred tax liabilities for land revaluation -- 95,608 94,842 1,008

Acceptances and gUArantEes:««««« - srrriiniini 20,074 33,446 355

TOLAl lIADIIHIES «++vvereerrrerererrremermrersrerarrenreereseeseesseesreesressressneesneenens 32,476,924 34,045,391 361,992

(NET ASSETS)

Capital SLOCK «-+wrersersrmrsmremninits s 210,200 210,207 2,235

Capital surplus ----- 210,200 210,207 2,235

Retained earnings --- 165,557 156,357 1,662

Treasury StOCk -----weuo: (16,703) (13,431) (142)

Total shareholders' equ|ty ....................................................................... 569,253 563,340 5,989

Net unrealized gains (losses) on securities, net of fax -« 483,446 1,099,351 11,689

Deferred hedge gains (losses) (44) (1,801) (19)

Reserve for land revaluation - - - srerarermmni i (61 61 6) (36,995) (393)

Foreign currency translation adjustments -« oo, (8,535) 18,229 193

Total accumulated other comprehensive INCoOME:-«+--«-xerrerresrininnnenne 413,249 1,078,784 11,470

Subscription r|ghts 1O Shares «:esrersersennicnniantartaiiiiininacnitinnanieniarcicacansans 150 379 4

Minority iNterests «+esreererttritiiiiiii s 9’091 6,514 69

Total NEt ASSELS «+rrerrrrrrrarrarrriii 991,745 1,649,020 17,533

Total liabilities and net assets: - e 33,468,670 35,694,411 379,525
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Consolidated Statement of Earnings

(Unit: million

(Unit: million yen) US dollars)
Year ended March 31,
2012 2013 2013

Ordinary FEVENUES :-+rvrsatenseusconnsrnerssrassnsansarsssnsnneinsisrontassonssssesniansonsesionsonss 4‘931 ’781 5’283’989 56’1 82
Premium and other iINCOmME «««+«x-eererniminn s 3,539,579 3,646,831 38,775
INVESTMENT INCOME ++rrrrmrrrr e 1,035,662 1,335,120 14,195
Interest and dividends 698,627 709,592 7,544
Gains on investments in trading SECUIties ««--«x-xsrsersmrinniiniinins 822 19,492 207
Gains on sale Of SECUNtIES <+ xrrrrrrmmimm 259,619 226,587 2,409
Gains on redemption of securities - 686 3,887 41
Foreign exchange gains .................................................................. - 18,704 198
Reversal of reserve for possible 10an 10SSes «+««+ eeresreviniiiniiiinnnens 2,174 912 9
Other investment income -«+--+++eereeeeieinninns 2,582 20,649 219
Gains on investments in separate aCCOUNtS «+-«+xerereerereneniniininns 71,149 335,295 3,565
Other ordinary FEVENUES ++++rrrrrrrrrarrartarnarassstiraarassasnarnasarsarsaraarssasnarnnnas 356,539 302,037 3,211
Ordinary EXPIENSES -#rrrerrsssrreas sttt 4,705,860 5,126,695 54,510
Benefits and Claims -« esrerrereermmn 2,688,419 2,795,355 29,722
ClAUMIS +++++eerreerserrsermseeaseaseeusesaeesaeeaseesseesaeesseeaaeeseebesntesaneeaneeneenseens 784,632 798,773 8,493
Annuities- - 541,770 556,474 5,916
BENEFILS «+-reerererrerrerrrerirerresresseesseesseesseesseesresneseesneseesneesneesneenneenne 498,299 540,349 5,745
SUIMENAEr VAIUES «++errerrrrrrrrmmtitiiiiiiiis st 630,846 652,870 6,941
Other refunds - 232,871 246,886 2,625
Provision for policy reserves and others -« e, 718,673 1,191,953 12,673
Provision for reserves for outstanding claims -«««--«seereemeennnninnnes - 53,489 568
Provision for policy reserves - 709,161 1,129,293 12,007
Provision for interest on policyholder dividends «--«+--seerseeereeianeens 9,512 9,170 97
Investment EXPENSES ++vrreerresanstrasttastta sttt 380’31 5 221 ,738 2,357
Interest expenses - 20,034 20,046 213
Losses on money held in trust -« 14,342 14,009 148
Losses on sale of SECUNities <+ -rreeremmmmmii 180,717 66,203 703
Losses on valuation of securities - - 44,713 3,210 34
Losses on redemption of SECUNtiEs «++-«xresrerrrimmiminiis 3,355 1,637 17
Derivative transaction 10SSes: -+« serserrininiiis 36,543 63,369 673
Foreign exchange |OSSES rerrrrerranranrariiriireriariiininnane, 29,084 - -
Provision for reserve for possible investment losses 17 - -
Write-down Of 10aNs <+« eveeremmmmmimiiiiiiie 58 429 4
Depreciation of real estate for rent and others- 15,078 14,606 155
Other investment expenses- 36,370 38,224 406
Operating eXpenses -« - 471,061 486,419 5,171
Other ordinary EXPENSES r++rseerrrerrsstirstranits it 447,390 431,227 4,585
OFAINANY POFit -sseseseeresressusisrsisieirei i 225,920 157,294 1,672
Extraordinary gains .................................................................................. 30,477 8,882 94
Gains on disposal of fixed assets 1,595 8,880 94
Reversal of reserve for price fluctuations -« eeeeeeeiiiniiiniiiinnns 5,765 - -
Gain on step acquisition ...................................................................... 23,116 - -
Other extraordinary gains .................................................................... 0 2 0
Extraordinary |OSSES cereesrarsattertitttittitaitiitiiieiitse s e e 36,348 24,054 255
Losses on disposal of fixed assets - - 2,631 6,350 67
Impairment losses on fixed assets------ - 33,602 3,128 33
Provision for reserve for price fluctuations- - 14,397 153
Other extraordinary |OSSES +erernrrrnrarnrninirir i 114 179 1
Provision for reserve for policyholder dividends «--«:-««-eeremrmnsnnsinnnn. 69,000 86,000 914
Income before income taxes and minority interests - 151,048 56,122 596
Corporate iNCOMe taxeS-CUITENt «++-xxrrrurerrsriniiii e 29,597 80,625 857
Corporate income taxes-deferred -« - s 104,024 (54,086) (575)
Total of corporate income taxes 133,621 26,538 282
Income before minority interests 17,427 29,583 314
Minority interests in gain (loss) of subsidiaries:««--«--«sererrierniininncne (2,930) (2,843) (30)
Net income for the YA v eerneesrn ettt 20,357 32’427 344
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

(Unit: million
(Unit: million yen) US dollars)
Year ended March 31,
2012 2013 2013
Income before minority INtErestS o reererrrrrr i 17,427 29,583 314
Other comprehensive income
Net unrealized gains (losses) on securities, net of tax ««+-««wweeemeeennns 244,910 615,900 6,548
Deferred hedge gains (losses)- (1,287) (1,757) (18)
Reserve for land revaluation:-«««---«esseeeeee 16,861 97) 1)
Foreign currency translation adjustments -« - eeeeeeniinn (4,207) 23,904 254
Share of other comprehensive income of subsidiaries and
affiliates accounted for under the equity method:«-««--reereenieinenns (604) 3,141 33
Total other comprehensive INCOME «+-+«+  verriimiiine 255,673 641,091 6,816
Comprehensive 1107000 1= LT L LT Cy L C T 273,100 670,675 7,131
(Details)
Attributable to shareholders of the parent company:«««-««« seeereeieneen 275,722 673,243 7,158
Attributable to Minority INtErests -« - weerereiriiiie (2,622) (2,568) (27)
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Net Assets

(Unit: million

(Unit: million yen) US dollars)
Year ended March 31,
2012 2013 2013
Shareholders’ equity
Capital stock
Balance at the beginning of the year -« e, 210,200 210,200 2,234
Changes for the year
Issuance of new shares - exercise of subscription rights to shares::--- - 7 0
Total Changes fOr the Year -« e - 7 0
Balance at the end of the year -+ e 210,200 210,207 2,235
Capital surplus
Balance at the beginning of the year -« e 210,200 210,200 2,234
Changes for the year
Issuance of new shares - exercise of subscription rights to shares::--- - 7 0
DiSPOSal Of rEASUNY STOCK «+r+sseessessesesneresssessessississessssessessssssssssssses (1,315) (1,090) (11)
Transfer from retained earnings to capital SUrplus -« -seesereeieninennns 1,315 1,090 11
Total Changes fOr the YEar -+« --wrsrrereemrerriisisisisic s - 7 0
Balance at the end of the year -+« e 210,200 210,207 2,235
Retained earnings
Balance at the beginning of the year -+« -t e 149,007 165,557 1,760
Changes for the year
Dividends (15,776) (15,818) (168)
Net income for the WAL «ressrerrntt ettt 20,357 32,427 344
Transfer from retained earnings to capital SUrplus «««« seeseremeennnennn: (1,315) (1,090) (11)
Transfer from reserve for land revaluation 13,284 (24,718) (262)
OLNEIS +++evrerreerreesneeseesseesseasseaaseeasesntesaeesaeesseessesssesseenseensesneesaeesaeenneensenn 0 0 0
Total changes for the year ««« v 16,549 (9,199) (97)
Balance at the end of the year -+ - e 165,557 156,357 1,662
Treasury stock
Balance at the beginning of the year -+« (20,479) (16,703) (177)
Changes for the year
DiSPOSal Of trEASUIY SLOCK --++-s-rsssersruruceririirisiniisisississisis s 3,775 3,272 34
Total Changes fOr the YEar -+« --wrsrrereemrerriisiinsissee s 3,775 3,272 34
Balance at the end of the year -+ -« e (16,703) (13,431) (142)
Total shareholders’ equity
Balance at the beginning of the year -« e, 548,928 569,253 6,052
Changes for the year
Issuance of new shares - exercise of subscription rights to shares::--- - 14 0
Dividends (15,776) (15,818) (168)
Net income for the year -+« -« e 20,357 32,427 344
Disposal of treasury StOCK ««««+-«reesrrerrmmimiiii e 2,459 2,182 23
Transfer from retained earnings to capital SUrplus «««+--seemereeseeninennns - - -
Transfer from reserve for land revaluation ««««--«eemmeii, 13,284 (24,718) (262)
OLNEIS -+++-+erreermrerurerneenseesseerseeasteseeusesaeesateaseeaseesse st e e s e enseeneesanenanenneenean 0 0 0
Total Changes fOr the YEar -+« --wrsrrerrrererriirisinsisici s 20,325 (5,912) 62)
Balance at the end of the year -+ oo 569,253 563,340 5,989
Accumulated other comprehensive income
Net unrealized gains (losses) on securities, net of tax
Balance at the beginning of the year -+« -t e 238,886 483,446 5,140
Changes for the year
Net changes of items other than shareholders’ equity:««+--esrseeinienns 244,560 615,905 6,548
Total changes for the year 244,560 615,905 6,548
Balance at the end of the year -+ e, 483,446 1,099,351 11,689
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Net Assets (Continued)

(Unit: million

(Unit: million yen) US dollars)
Year ended March 31,
2012 2013 2013
Deferred hedge gains (losses)
Balance at the beginning of the year -« o, 1,243 (44) (0)
Changes for the year
Net changes of items other than shareholders’ equity:««+-eerseerneeeens (1,287) (1,757) (18)
Total changes for the YA +eererseresntt st (1 ,287) (1 !757) (1 8)
Balance at the end of the year -+ - veevriiis (44) (1,801) (19)
Reserve for land revaluation
Balance at the beginning of the year -« e (65,194) (61,616) (655)
Changes for the year
Net changes of items other than shareholders’ equity:--««+--+cesaeerseeeens 3,577 24,621 261
Total changes for the year -« v 3,577 24,621 261
Balance at the end Of the YEar --«-:---rresrrueererririeiniisiciii s (61,616) (36,995) (393)
Foreign currency translation adjustments
Balance at the beginning of the year -+« -t e (8,765) (8,535) (90)
Changes for the year
Net changes of items other than shareholders’ equity-«------«--erseereeas (4,769) 26,765 284
Total changes for the VAN +serrssres sttt (4,769) 26,765 284
Balance at the end of the YA «ressrerrauntr sttt (8,535) 18,229 193
Total accumulated other comprehensive income
Balance at the beginning of the year -+ e 171,169 413,249 4,393
Changes for the year
Net changes of items other than shareholders’ equity 242,080 665,534 7,076
Total changes for the year ««« e 242,080 665,534 7,076
Balance at the end of the year -+ oo 413,249 1,078,784 11,470
Subscription rights to shares
Balance at the beginning of the year -« - v - 150 1
Changes for the year
Net changes of items other than shareholders’ equity -«++-eeeeeeerieinnnnns 150 229 2
Total Changes fOr the YEar---- -« rwerrrurrirmreiriisisi e 150 229 2
Balance at the end of the YBA ++eeraserst sttt 150 379 4
Minority interests
Balance at the beginning of the year -, 11,737 9,091 96
Changes for the year
Net changes of items other than shareholders’ equity (2,646) (2,577) (27)
Total changes for the YBAN +wserrstr ettt (2,646) (2!577) (27)
Balance at the end of the year- - v 9,091 6,514 69
Total net assets
Balance at the beginning of the year -+ v 731,835 991,745 10,544
Changes for the year
Issuance of new shares - exercise of subscription rights to shares ----:--- - 14 0
Dividends (15,776) (15,818) (168)
NEt iNCOME FOr thE YEAI-++++-++rsrsrerrirmucieiiisisissi s 20,357 32,427 344
DiSPOSal Of trEASUNY STOCK:++-+++ssrsreseresessisrirsisissies s 2,459 2,182 23
Transfer from retained earnings to capital surplus - - - -
Transfer from reserve for land revaluation -« e 13,284 (24,718) (262)
(@1 0T = LT LT PN 0 0 0
Net changes of items other than shareholders’ equity -+« eeeseerriennnnnns 239,584 663,187 7,051
Total changes for the YBAN ++serrstr ettt 259,909 657,274 6,988
Balance at the end of the year- v 991,745 1,649,020 17,533
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

(Unit: million
(Unit: million yen) US dollars)
Year ended March 31,
2012 2013 2013
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Income before income taxes and minority iNterests ««- v 151,048 56,122 596
Depreciation of rented real estate and others - . 15,078 14,606 155
Depreciation ----- 38,555 39,992 425
Impairment losses on fixed assets - 33,602 3,128 33
Amortization of goodwill---««--«+e-ueeeueeen - 3,352 3,839 40
Increase (decrease) in reserves for outstanding Claims ««««+-serererinins (45,804) 43,517 462
Increase (decrease) in POlICY MESEIVES:«« trwwrrriiirtirinereiisrii st 706,755 1,134,919 12,067
Provision for interest on policyholder dividends ---- . 9,512 9,170 97
Provision for (reversal of) reserve for policyholder dividends:- 69,000 86,000 914
Increase (decrease) in reserve for possible 10an 10SSES -««+xx+rxrerrrrseanminiiiiiie (2,244) (1,469) (15)
Increase (decrease) in reserve for possible investment 10SSES ««+xxxrerrereririnininiininns (80) (142) (1)
WITtE-COWN OF I0GNS «++++ververrererrerrermrmemrersesessessetsesseseesessessenesses 58 429 4
Increase (decrease) in reserve for employees' retirement benefits -« eweervrniininns 13,725 5,941 63
Increase (decrease) in reserve for retirement benefits of directors,

executive officers and corporate auditors -+« - e (628) (188) (1)
Increase (decrease) in reserve for possible reimbursement of prescribed claims (100) (300) 3)
Increase (decrease) in reserve for price fluctuations:«««-«««-sereeermmrieinins (5,765) 14,397 153
Interest and dividends (698,627) (709,592) (7,544)
Securities related losses (gains) (103,492) (514,210) (5,467)
Interest expenses ----«---eeeeeinees . 20,034 20,046 213
Foreign exchange losses (gains) -+ . 29,084 (18,704) (198)
Losses (gains) on disposal of fixed assets . 1,036 (2,530) (26)
Equity in losses (income) of affiliates:- (2,065) (2,652) (28)
Loss (gain) on step acquisitions (23,116)

Decrease (increase) in reinsurance receivable .............ccccooiiiiiiiiiiirce s 5,858 10,016 106

Decrease (increase) in other assets unrelated to investing and financing activities ..... 5,773 (16,705) 177)
Increase (decrease) in reinSUranCe Payable ..........ccoveeerierereeriesieseeree e 602 2,184 23
Increase (decrease) in other liabilities unrelated to investing and financing activities .. 3,046 27,947 297
Others, net 84,712 96,361 1,024
Subtotal - 308,914 302,125 3,212
Interest and dividends received --- 744172 738,053 7,847
Interest paid (18,599) (19,846) (211)
Policyholder dividends paid - (94,311) (90,280) (959)
Others, Net - emeereninnenns (174,455) (408,429) (4,342)
Corporate iNCOME taXES Palid «++++w+rrrrsrerrerrrarisrin e (35,650) (33,918) (360)
Net cash flows provided by (used in) operating activities -« - eremsniiins 730,069 487,703 5,185
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchases of monetary claims bought: -« o (30,900) (20,800) (221)
Proceeds from sale and redemption of monetary claims bought -- . 36,014 28,701 305
Purchases of money held in trust: -« . (9,100) (28,500) (249)
Proceeds from decrease in money held in trust:- . 9,300 1,477 15
PUICHASES Of SECUITIES +vreeerrrreeessrrrermmirnreiiitesiiinessssaressstes s sssaesssaneessbeeessssbeeesssaeesens (9,839,307) (8,441,421) (89,754)
Proceeds from sale and redemption of SECUIties:««+ -+ rerrreriemiiie 9,131,880 7,837,464 83,332
Origination of loans -«------sxseeeeeeens . (419,187) (402,048) (4,274)
Proceeds from collection of loans . 633,334 687,176 7,306
Others, net (33,626) 162,616 1,729
Total of net cash provided by (used in) investment transactions -+« wxeeverenrenninnens (521,592) (170,335) (1,811)
Total of net cash provided by (used in) operating activities and
iNVeSsStMeENt traANSACLIONS «--xerrerrerruiiiii e 208,476 31 7’368 3’374
Acquisition of tangible fixed assets............ccccciiiiiiiiiii (25,817) (34,178) (363)
Proceeds from sale of tangible fixed assets . 4,792 32,592 346
Acquisition of intangible fixed assets----:+--- (21,652) (20,322) (216)
Proceeds from sale of intangible fixed assets 0 89 0
Acquisition of stock of subsidiaries resulting in change in scope of consolidation------ (86,217) - -
Payments for execution of assets retirement obligations . (343) - -
Net cash flows provided by (used in) investing activities -« (650,831) (192,153) (2,043)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
REPAYMENT OF DOITOWINGS +++++++tsserseesessesrtstasseissis ittt (2,377) (2,210) (23)
Repayment of financial lease obligations:- . (474) (1,338) (14)
Proceeds from disposal Of treasury StOCK: s+ rerrreerrememiniiniiineieeisiseiseeseeens 2,456 2,165 23
Cash dividends paid---: (15,693) (15,746) (167)
Others, net-«---eoereeeens . (24) 8) 0)
Net cash flows provided by (used in) financing activities----- . (16,113) (17,138) (182)
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents - oo (642) 5,919 62
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents «-««-veeeeein 62,482 284,330 3,023
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year - . 501,904 564,387 6,000
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the ygar - +««++-«oreeren 564,387 848,717 9,024
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS OF AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2013

I. BASIS FOR PRESENTATION

The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been prepared from the accounts maintained by The Dai-
ichi Life Insurance Company, Limited (“DL”) and its consolidated subsidiaries in accordance with the provisions set
forth in the Financial Instruments and Exchange Act, and in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted
in Japan (“Japanese GAAP”) which are different in certain respects from the application and disclosure requirements of
International Financial Reporting Standards.

Certain items presented in the consolidated financial statements are reclassified for the convenience of readers
outside Japan. The notes to the consolidated financial statements include information which is not required under
Japanese GAAP but is presented herein as additional information.

The amounts indicated in millions of yen are rounded down by truncating the figures below one million. Totals may not
add up exactly because of such truncation. Amounts in U.S. dollars are included solely for the convenience of readers
outside Japan. The rate of ¥94.05=US$1.00, the foreign exchange rate on March 31, 2013, has been used for translation
of the truncated figures in Japanese yen. The inclusion of such amounts is not intended to imply that Japanese yen has
been or could be readily converted, realized or settled into U.S. dollars at that rate or any other rate.

Il. PRINCIPLES OF CONSOLIDATION

1. Scope of Consolidation
The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of DL and its consolidated subsidiaries (collectively,
“the Group”), including The Dai-ichi Life Information Systems Co., Ltd., The Dai-ichi Frontier Life Insurance Co., Ltd.
(“DFLI”), Dai-ichi Life Insurance Company of Vietnam, Limited and TAL Dai-ichi Life Australia Pty Ltd (“TDLA”). The
number of consolidated subsidiaries as of March 31, 2013 was fifteen. One subsidiary of TDLA is excluded from the
scope of consolidation as TDLA disposed of its interest in the company in September 2012.

The main subsidiaries that are not consolidated for the purposes of financial reporting are Dai-ichi Seimei
Sogo Service K.K., Dai-ichi Seimei Human Net K.K., and Dai-ichi Seimei Business Service K.K. The thirteen non-
consolidated subsidiaries had, individually and in the aggregate, a minimal impact on the consolidated financial
statements in terms of total assets, sales, net income, retained earnings, cash flows, and others.

There was no non-consolidated subsidiary accounted for under the equity method as of March 31, 2013.

The number of affiliated companies under the equity method as of March 31, 2013 was 29. The affiliated companies
included DIAM Co., Ltd., Mizuho-DL Financial Technology Co., Ltd., Japan Real Estate Asset Management Co.,

Ltd., Trust & Custody Services Bank Ltd., Corporate-pension Business Service Co., Ltd., Japan Excellent Asset
Management Co., Ltd., NEOSTELLA CAPITAL CO., LTD., OCEAN LIFE INSURANCE PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED,
Star Union Dai-ichi Life Insurance Company Limited and Janus Capital Group Inc.

OCEAN LIFE INSURANCE PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED changed its name from Ocean Life Insurance Co., Ltd. on
July 10, 2012.

As Janus Capital Group Inc. became an affiliated company of DL on January 22, 2013, effective the fiscal year
ended March 31, 2013, Janus Capital Group Inc. and its fourteen group companies were newly included in the scope
of the equity method of DL. The non-consolidated subsidiaries (Dai-ichi Seimei Sogo Service K.K., Dai-ichi Seimei
Human Net K.K., and Dai-ichi Seimei Business Service K.K. and others), as well as affiliated companies (CVC No. 1
Investment Limited Partnership, CVC No. 2 Investment Limited Partnership, NEOSTELLA No. 1 Investment Limited
Partnership, O.M. Building Management Co., Ltd., and others) were not accounted for under the equity method.
These companies had, individually and in the aggregate, a minimal impact on the consolidated financial statements, in
terms of the net income (loss), retained earnings and others.

The summary of special purpose entities is described in XIX. SPECIFIED PURPOSE COMPANIES.

2. Year-end Dates of Consolidated Subsidiaries
The closing date of domestic consolidated subsidiaries is March 31, whereas that of consolidated overseas
subsidiaries is December 31 or March 31. Financial information as of those closing dates is used to prepare the
consolidated financial statements, although the necessary adjustments are made when significant transactions take
place between the account closing date of an individual subsidiary and that of the consolidated financial statements.

3. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(1) Valuation Methods of Securities
Securities held by DL and its consolidated subsidiaries including cash equivalents, bank deposits, and monetary
claims bought which are equivalent to marketable securities, and marketable securities managed as trust assets in
money held in trust, are carried as explained below:
The amortization of premiums and accretion of discounts is calculated by the straight-line method.
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a) Trading Securities
Trading securities are carried at fair value with cost determined by the moving average method.

b) Held-to-maturity Bonds
Held-to-maturity bonds are stated at amortized cost determined by the moving average method.

c) Policy-reserve-matching Bonds (in accordance with the Industry Audit Committee Report No. 21 “Temporary
Treatment of Accounting and Auditing Concerning Policy-reserve-matching Bonds in the Insurance Industry”
issued by the Japanese Institute of Certified Public Accountants (JICPA))

Policy-reserve-matching bonds are stated at amortized cost determined by the moving average method.

d) Stocks of Non-consolidated Subsidiaries and Affiliated Companies Not Accounted for under the Equity Method
Stocks of non-consolidated subsidiaries and affiliated companies not accounted for under the equity method are
stated at cost determined by the moving average method.

e) Available-for-sale Securities
i) Available-for-sale Securities with Market Value
Available-for-sale securities which have market value are valued at fair value at the end of the fiscal year (for
domestic stocks, the average fair value during March), with cost determined by the moving average method.
ii) Available-for-sale Securities Whose Market Values Are Extremely Difficult to Recognize
a. Government/Corporate Bonds (including Foreign Bonds), Whose Premium or Discount Represents the
Interest Adjustment
Government/corporate bonds (including foreign bonds), whose premium or discount represents the interest
adjustment are valued at the amortized cost determined by the moving average method.
b. Others
All others are valued at cost determined by the moving average method.
Net unrealized gains or losses on these available-for-sale securities are presented as a separate component
of net assets and not in the consolidated statement of earnings.

(2) Valuation Method of Derivative Transactions
Derivative transactions are reported at fair value.

(3) Depreciation of Depreciable Assets
a) Depreciation of Tangible Fixed Assets Excluding Leased Assets
Depreciation of tangible fixed assets excluding leased assets is calculated by the declining balance method
(the depreciation of buildings other than attached improvements and structures is calculated by the straight-line
method).

Estimated useful lives of major assets are as follows:

Buildings 2 to 60 years
Other tangible fixed assets 2 to 20 years

Tangible fixed assets other than land and buildings that were acquired for ¥100,000 or more but less than
¥200,000 are depreciated at equal amounts over three years.

With respect to tangible fixed assets that are acquired on or before March 31, 2007 and that are depreciated
to their final depreciable limit, effective the year ended March 31, 2008, the remaining values are depreciated
at equal amounts over five years following the year end when such assets were depreciated to their final
depreciable limit.

Depreciation of tangible fixed assets owned by consolidated subsidiaries in Japan is principally calculated by
the declining balance method, while the straight-line method is principally used to compute depreciation for such
assets of consolidated overseas subsidiaries.

(Changes in accounting policies, which are difficult to distinguish from changes in accounting estimates)
Effective the fiscal year ended March 31, 2013, DL and its domestic consolidated subsidiaries changed their
depreciation method for tangible fixed assets acquired on or after April 1, 2012 in accordance with the revision of

the Corporation Tax Act.

As a result, consolidated ordinary profit and income before income taxes and minority interests for the fiscal
year ended March 31, 2013 were each ¥357 million (US$3 million) higher than they would have been if calculated
using the previous depreciation method.

b) Amortization of Intangible Fixed Assets Excluding Leased Assets
DL and its consolidated subsidiaries use the straight-line method for amortization of intangible fixed assets
excluding leased assets. Amortization of software for internal use is based on the estimated useful lives of 4 to 8
years.

c) Depreciation of Leased Assets
Depreciation of leased assets with regard to finance leases whose ownership does not transfer to the lessees is
computed under the straight-line method assuming zero salvage value. Finance leases, which commenced on or
before March 31, 2008, are accounted for in the same manner applicable to ordinary operating leases.
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(4) Reserve for Possible Loan Losses
The reserve for possible loan losses is calculated based on the internal rules for self-assessment, write-offs, and
reserves on assets.

For loans to and claims on obligors that have already experienced bankruptcy, reorganization, or other formal
legal failure (hereafter, “bankrupt obligors”) and loans to and claims on obligors that have suffered substantial
business failure (hereafter, “substantially bankrupt obligors”), the reserve is calculated by deducting the estimated
recoverable amount of the collateral or guarantees from the book value of the loans and claims after the direct
write-off described below.

For loans and claims on obligors that have not yet suffered business failure but are considered highly likely to fail
(hereafter, “obligors at risk of bankruptcy”), the reserve is calculated, taking into account a) the recoverable amount
covered by the collateral or guarantees and b) an overall assessment of the obligor’s ability to pay.

For other loans and claims, the reserve is calculated by multiplying the actual rate or other appropriate rate of
losses from bad debts during a certain period in the past by the amount of the loans and claims.

For all loans and claims, the relevant department in DL performs an asset quality assessment based on the
internal rules for self-assessment, and an independent audit department audits the result of the assessment. The
above reserves are established based on the result of this assessment.

For loans and claims to bankrupt and substantially bankrupt obligors, the unrecoverable amount is calculated by
deducting the amount deemed recoverable from collateral and guarantees from the amount of the loans and claims
and is directly written off from the amount of the loans and claims. The amounts written off during the years ended
March 31, 2012 and 2013 were ¥119 million and ¥472 million (US$5 million), respectively.

(5) Reserve for Employees’ Retirement Benefits

For the reserve for employees’ retirement benefits, the amount calculated in accordance with the accounting
standards for retirement benefits (“Statement on Establishing Accounting Standards for Retirement Benefits” issued
on June 16, 1998 by the Business Accounting Council) is provided, based on the projected benefit obligations and
pension assets as of March 31, 2013.

Gains/losses on plan amendments are amortized under the straight-line method through a certain period (3 years)
within the employees’ average remaining service period.

Actuarial differences are amortized under the straight-line method through a certain period (3 or 7 years) within
the employees’ average remaining service period, starting from the following year.

Certain consolidated subsidiaries applied the simplified method in calculating their projected benefit obligations.

(Additional information)

DL replaced a part of its lump-sum retirement benefit plan with a defined contribution pension plan on April 1, 2013,
and adopted “Guidance on Accounting for Transfers between Retirement Benefit Plans” (Accounting Standards
Board of Japan (ASBJ) Application Guidance No. 1 issued on January 31, 2002) and “Practical Solution on
Accounting for Transfer between Retirement Benefit Plans” (Practical Issues Task Force No. 2 issued on February 7,
2007) to account for the replacement. As a result, DL recognized other extraordinary losses of ¥176 million (US$1
million) for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2013.

(6) Reserve for Retirement Benefits of Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Auditors
For the reserve for retirement benefits of directors, executive officers and corporate auditors of DL, a) an
estimated amount for future payment out of the total amount of benefits for past service approved by the 105th
general meeting of representative policyholders of DL and b) an estimated amount for future corporate-pension
payments to directors, executive officers, and corporate auditors who retired before the 105th general meeting of
representative policyholders of DL are provided.

For the reserve for retirement benefits of directors, executive officers, and corporate auditors of certain

consolidated subsidiaries, an amount considered to have been rationally incurred is provided.

(7) Reserve for Possible Reimbursement of Prescribed Claims
To prepare for the reimbursement of claims for which prescription periods had expired, DL provided for reserve for
possible reimbursement of prescribed claims an estimated amount based on past reimbursement experience.

(8) Reserve for Price Fluctuations
A reserve for price fluctuations is calculated based on the book value of stocks and other securities at the end of
the year in accordance with the provisions of Article 115 of the Insurance Business Act.
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(9) Translation of Assets and Liabilities Denominated in Foreign Currencies into Yen
DL translated foreign currency-denominated assets and liabilities (excluding stocks of its non-consolidated
subsidiaries and affiliated companies not accounted for under the equity method) into yen at the prevailing
exchange rates at the end of the year. Stocks of non-consolidated subsidiaries and affiliated companies not
accounted for under the equity method are translated into yen at the exchange rates on the dates of acquisition.
Assets, liabilities, revenues, and expenses of DL's consolidated overseas subsidiaries are translated to yen at the
exchange rates at the end of their fiscal year. Translation adjustments associated with the consolidated overseas
subsidiaries are included in foreign currency translation adjustments in the net assets section of the consolidated
balance sheet.

For certain consolidated subsidiaries of DL, changes in fair value of bonds included in foreign currency-
denominated available-for-sale securities related to foreign currency-denominated insurance contracts are divided
into two: changes in fair value due to changes in market prices in their original currencies are accounted for as
“net unrealized gains (losses) on securities”, and the remaining changes are reported in “foreign exchange gains
(losses)”.

(10) Methods for Hedge Accounting

a) Methods for Hedge Accounting
Hedging transactions are accounted for in accordance with the “Accounting Standards for Financial Instruments”
(ASBJ Statement No. 10 issued on March 10, 2008). Primarily, i) special hedge accounting and the deferral
hedge method for interest rate swaps are used for cash flow hedges of certain loans, government and corporate
bonds, loans payable and bonds payabile; ii) the currency allotment method and the deferral hedge method using
foreign currency swaps and foreign currency forward contracts are used for cash flow hedges against exchange
rate fluctuations in certain foreign currency-denominated bonds, loans, loans payable and bonds payable and
certain foreign currency-denominated term deposits and stocks (forecasted transaction); iii) the fair value hedge
method using currency options and foreign currency forward contracts is used for hedges against exchange
rate fluctuations in the value of certain foreign currency-denominated bonds; and iv) the deferral hedge method
and fair value hedge method using equity options and equity forward contracts are used for hedges against
price fluctuations in the value of certain domestic stocks and foreign currency-denominated stocks (forecasted
transaction).

b) Hedging Instruments and Hedged ltems

Hedging instruments Hedged items
Interest rate SWaps .......cccccveriiriieciiene e Loans, government and corporate bonds, loans
payable, bonds payable
Foreign CUrrenCy SWaps ........ccccceveceeeriieeerseee e Foreign currency-denominated bonds, foreign currency-

denominated loans, foreign currency-denominated
loans payable, foreign currency-denominated bonds
payable

Foreign currency forward contracts...........ccccceeeveeeeneeen. Foreign currency-denominated bonds, foreign
currency-denominated term deposits, foreign currency-
denominated stocks (forecasted transaction)

Currency OPtioNS .......cciviviiiiiee e Foreign currency-denominated bonds

Equity oplions .......cooiiiiiiii e, Domestic stocks, foreign currency-denominated stocks
(forecasted transaction)

Equity forward contracts ........cccceeeceeericeeecciee e Domestic stocks

c) Hedging Policies
DL conducts hedging transactions with regard to certain market risk and foreign currency risk of underlying
assets to be hedged, in accordance with the internal investment policy and procedure guidelines.

d) Assessment of Hedge Effectiveness
Hedge effectiveness is assessed primarily by a comparison of fluctuations in cash flows or fair value of hedged
items to those of hedging instruments.

(11) Amortization of Goodwill
Gooduwill is amortized over a period up to 20 years under the straight-line method. The entire amount is expensed
as incurred if the amount is immaterial.

(12) Scope of Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents in the consolidated statement of cash flows consist of the following items contained
in the consolidated balance sheet: cash and deposits, call loans, commercial paper included in monetary claims
bought, money market funds included in securities, and overdrafts included in other liabilities.
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(13) Calculation of National and Local Consumption Tax
DL and its domestic consolidated subsidiaries account for national and local consumption tax by the tax-exclusion
method. Deferred consumption tax included in non-recoverable consumption tax on certain assets is capitalized
as other assets and amortized equally over five years in accordance with the Enforcement Ordinance of the
Corporation Tax Act, and such taxes other than deferred consumption tax are recognized as an expense when
incurred.

(14) Policy Reserves
Policy reserves of DL and its consolidated subsidiaries that operate a life insurance business in Japan are
established in accordance with Article 116 of the Insurance Business Act. Insurance premium reserves are
calculated as follows:

a) Reserves for policies subject to the standard policy reserve rules are calculated based on the methods stipulated
by the Commissioner of Financial Services Agency (Notification of the Minister of Finance No. 48, 1996).

b) Reserves for other policies are established based on the net level premium method.

(Additional information)

Effective the fiscal year ended March 31, 2008, for whole life insurance contracts acquired by DL on or before
March 31, 1996 for which premium payments were already completed (including lump-sum payments), additional
policy reserves are provided in accordance with Article 69, Paragraph 5 of the Enforcement Regulation of the
Insurance Business Act and will be provided in the following nine years. As a result, the amount of the provisions
for policy reserves for the year ended March 31, 2012 and 2013 were ¥105,958 million and ¥150,798 million
(US$1,603 million), respectively.

(15) Accounting Standard and Guidance Scheduled to be Applied
The accounting standard and relevant guidance that are not yet applied but scheduled to be applied are as follows:
e “Accounting Standard for Retirement Benefits” (ASBJ Statement No. 26 issued on May 17, 2012), and
e “Guidance on Accounting Standard for Retirement Benefits” (ASBJ Guidance No. 25 issued on May 17, 2012)

a) Overview
From the viewpoint of improvements to financial reporting and promoting international convergence, ASBJ
revised the standard and guidance to improve accounting of unrecognized actuarial differences and unrecognized
gains (losses) on plan amendments and calculation of projected benefit obligations and service costs and to
enhance related disclosures.

b) Scheduled date for application
DL will apply the revised method for calculating projected benefit obligations and service cost effective the fiscal
year beginning April 1, 2014, although it will apply the other components of the standard and guidance at the end
of the fiscal year ending March 31, 2014.

c) Impact of applying the standard and guidance
The impact of applying the standard and guidance is currently under assessment.

(16) Policy Acquisition Costs
The costs of acquiring and renewing business, which include agent commissions and certain other costs directly
related to the acquisition of business, are expensed when incurred as the Insurance Business Act in Japan does not
permit insurance companies to defer and amortize these costs.
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Ill. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

1. Assets Pledged as Collateral / Secured Liabilities
The amounts of securities and cash/deposits pledged as collateral were as follows:

As of March 31,

2012 2013 2013
N (Unit: million
(Unit: million yen) US dollars)
Securities (Government boNds)..........cueiiiireiiiereeiiee e 432,624 620,782 6,600
Securities (FOreign SECUIMTIES) ......ccivvrrreiriiieiieeeere e 3,294 3,753 39
Securities (Corporate boNdS) .........cceereerieerireieeneeee e 526 534 5
CaSh/AEPOSILS ......ueereiiiiiiiieeie et e 86 86 0
Securities and cash/deposits pledged as collateral.............cccoceeneene 436,532 625,157 6,647
The amounts of secured liabilities were as follows:
As of March 31,
2012 2013 2013
R (Unit: million
(Unit: million yen) US dollars)
Cash collateral for securities lending transactions............cccceeevveernnees 405,816 568,433 6,043
LOaNS PAYaDIE ......eeeeiiiieiee e 8 5 0
Secured liabilities 405,824 568,438 6,043

“Securities (Government bonds)” pledged as collateral for securities lending transactions with cash collateral as of
March 31, 2012 and 2013 were ¥394,756 million and ¥537,715 million (US$5,717 million), respectively.

2. Securities Lending
Securities lent under lending agreements are included in the consolidated balance sheet. The total balance of

securities lent as of March 31, 2012 and 2013 was ¥490,077 million and ¥741,123 million (US$7,880 million),
respectively.
3. Policy-reserve-matching Bonds
(1) Book Value and Market Value
The book value and the market value of policy-reserve-matching bonds as of March 31, 2012 and 2013 were as
follows:
As of March 31,
2012 2013 2013
N (Unit: million
(Unit: million yen) US dollars)
BOOK VAIUE......coiiiiiieeie ettt 8,375,688 10,794,851 114,777
=T ] AN 10T SR 8,898,007 12,005,334 127,648

(2) Risk Management Policy
DL and its certain subsidiary categorize their insurance products into sub-groups by the attributes of each product
and, in order to manage risks properly, formulate their policies on investments and resource allocation based on
the balance of the sub-groups. Moreover, they periodically check that the duration gap between policy-reserve-
matching bonds and policy reserves stays within a certain range.
The sub-groups of insurance products of DL are:
i) individual life insurance and annuities,
i) non-participating single premium whole life insurance (without duty of medical disclosure),
iii) financial insurance and annuities, and
iv) group annuities,
with the exception of certain types.
The sub-groups of insurance products of the subsidiary of DL are:
i) individual life insurance and individual annuity (yen-denominated),
i) individual life insurance and individual annuity (U.S. dollar-denominated), and
iii) individual life insurance and individual annuity (Australian dollar-denominated),
with the exception of certain types and contracts.
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4. Stocks of Subsidiaries and Affiliated Companies
The amounts of stocks of and stakes in non-consolidated subsidiaries and affiliated companies DL held were as
follows:
As of March 31,
2012 2013 2013
— (Unit: million
(Unit: million yen) US dollars)
SEOCKS .eeiiieiieeie ettt ettt ettt e b st e et e st e e bt e s te e aeesneannee s 42,766 72,989 776
(0= T o] - | PO UPPSPPPRTN 2,126 3,990 42
Lo = USSR 44,892 76,980 818
5. Problem Loans
The amounts of credits to bankrupt borrowers, delinquent loans, loans past due for three months or more, and
restructured loans, which were included in loans, were as follows:
As of March 31,
2012 2013 2013
T (Unit: million
(Unit: million yen) US dollars)
Credits to bankrupt bOrrowers ..........ccoooveeiiiieiinieee e, 4,743 4,132 43
(D= [T oo 01T o) 0 L S 15,574 4,679 49
Loans past due for three months or More.........ccccoeeeeieiiieienieeeceieenne - - -
Restructured 10anSs ........occeeiiiieeie e 1,452 926 9
Lo = USRS 21,770 9,738 103

Credits to bankrupt borrowers represent non-accrual loans, excluding the balances already written off, which meet
the conditions prescribed in Article 96, Paragraph 1, Iltem 3 and 4 of the Enforcement Ordinance of the Corporation
Tax Act. Interest accruals of such loans are suspended since the principal of or interest on such loans is unlikely to be
collected.

Delinquent loans are credits that are delinquent other than credits to bankrupt borrowers and loans for which
interest payments have been suspended to assist and support the borrowers in the restructuring of their businesses.

Loans past due for three months or more are loans for which interest or principal payments are delinquent for three
months or more under the terms of the loans excluding those classified as credits to bankrupt borrowers or delinquent
loans.

Restructured loans are loans for which certain concessions favorable to borrowers, such as interest reductions or
exemptions, postponement of principal or interest payments, release from repayment or other agreements have been
negotiated for the purpose of assisting and supporting the borrowers in the restructuring of their businesses. This
category excludes loans classified as credits to bankrupt borrowers, delinquent loans, and loans past due for three
months or more.

As a result of the direct write-off of loans, decreases in credits to bankrupt borrowers and delinquent loans were as
follows:

As of March 31,

2012 2013 2013
- (Unit: million
(Unit: million yen) US dollars)
Credits to bankrupt DOIMOWENS .........cooieiiiiiiiinie e 50 407 4
DelinQUENT I0@NS.......ciiiiiiiiiieeiee et 69 65 0
6. Commitment Line
As of March 31, 2012 and 2013, there were unused commitment line agreements under which DL is the lender of
¥2,300 million and ¥25,041 million (US$266 million), respectively.
7. Accumulated Depreciation of Tangible Fixed Assets
Accumulated depreciation of tangible fixed assets as of March 31, 2012 and 2013 was ¥621,752 million and ¥627,365
million (US$6,670 million), respectively.
8. Assets and Liabilities Held in Separate Accounts

The total amounts of assets held in separate accounts defined in Article 118, Paragraph 1 of the Insurance Business
Act as of March 31, 2012 and 2013 were ¥2,450,415 million and ¥2,788,994 million (US$29,654 million), respectively.
Separate account liabilities were the same amount as the separate account assets.
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9. Reinsurance
As of March 31, 2012 and 2013, reserves for outstanding claims for reinsured parts defined in Article 71, Paragraph
1 of the Enforcement Regulations of the Insurance Business Act, which is referred to in Article 73, Paragraph 3 of the
Regulations were ¥19 million and ¥12 million (US$0 million), respectively.
As of March 31, 2012 and 2013, the amounts of policy reserves provided for reinsured parts defined in Article 71,
Paragraph 1 of the Regulations were ¥5,923 million and ¥8,236 million (US$87 million), respectively.

10. Changes in Reserve for Policyholder Dividends
Changes in reserve for policyholder dividends were as follows:

Year ended March 31,

2012 2013 2013
(Unit: million yen) (3gtéicr)rrl"a|:2;
Balance at the beginning of the year..........ccccoviiiiiiiicieeee 403,671 387,871 4,124
Dividends paid during the year...........cccoeviriiiiiiiiiicieeecceeeeeees (94,311) (90,280) (959)
Interest accrual during the year...........ccocvoieeiirieecee e 9,512 9,170 97
Provision for reserve for policyholder dividends.............cccccovieeiiennns 69,000 86,000 914
Balance at the end of the year 387,871 392,761 4,176

11. Obligations to the Life Insurance Policyholders Protection Corporation of Japan
The estimated future obligations of DL and its subsidiaries that operate a life insurance business in Japan to the Life
Insurance Policyholders Protection Corporation of Japan under Article 259 of the Insurance Business Act as of March
31,2012 and 2013 were ¥60,468 million and ¥58,654 million (US$623 million), respectively. These obligations will be
recognized as operating expenses in the years in which they are paid.

12. Revaluation of Land

Based on the “Law for Revaluation of Land” (Publicly Issued Law 34, March 31, 1998), DL revalued land for business

use. The difference between the fair value and book value resulting from the revaluation, net of related deferred taxes,

is recorded as a reserve for land revaluation as a separate component of net assets and the related deferred tax

liability is recorded as deferred tax liabilities for land revaluation.

¢ Date of revaluation: March 31, 2001

¢ Method stipulated in Article 3 Paragraph 3 of the Law for Revaluation of Land:
The fair value was determined based on the appraisal value publicly announced for tax assessment purposes with
certain reasonable adjustments in accordance with Article 2-1 and 2-4 of the Enforcement Ordinance of the Law for
Revaluation of Land (Publicly Issued Cabinet Order 119, March 31, 1998).

* The excess of the new book value of the land over the fair value after revaluation in accordance with Article 10
of the Law for Revaluation of Land was ¥58,604 million as of March 31, 2012, which included ¥18,199 million
attributable to real estate for rent, and ¥31,044 million (US$330 million) as of March 31, 2013, which included
¥8,883 million (US$94 million) attributable to real estate for rent.
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13. Subordinated Bonds
Subordinated bonds of ¥148,652 million and ¥154,584 million (US$1,643 million) shown in liabilities as of March 31,
2012 and 2013 included foreign currency-denominated subordinated bonds, the repayment of which is subordinated
to other obligations.

Issuance Balance as of Balance as of Interest Maturity
Issuer Description date April 1, 2012 March 31, 2013 rate (%) Collateral date

(Unit: million yen)
Foreign currency (US

March 17 41,090 47,022 March 17

DL dollar) denominated ’ o " 5.73 None ’
cubordinated bonds 2004 [499 mil US$]  [499 mil US$] 2014
Foreign currency (US
dollar) denominated March 15, 107,562 107,562

DL Cerpetual subordinated 2011 [1,300 mil US$]  [1,300 mil US$] 7:25 None  Perpetual

bonds
Total - - 148,652 154,584 - - -

Note: 1. The figures in parentheses represent the principle amount in US dollars.
2. Foreign currency (US dollar) denominated subordinated bonds of ¥47,022 million (US$499 million) are due in one year or less.
3. The following table shows the maturities of long-term subordinated bonds for the 5 years subsequent to March 31, 2013:

Due in one year Due after one year Due after two years  Due after three years  Due after four years
or less through two years through three years through four years through five years
(Unit: million yen)
Subordinated bonds..... 47,025 - - - -
Due in one year Due after one year Due after two years  Due after three years Due after four years
or less through two years through three years through four years through five years
(Unit: million US dollars)
Subordinated bonds..... 500 - - - -

14. Subordinated Debt
As of March 31, 2012 and 2013, other liabilities included subordinated debt of ¥350,000 million and ¥350,000 million
(US$3,721 million), respectively, the repayment of which is subordinated to other obligations.

Balance as of Balance as of Average Balance as of Balance as of

Category April 1,2012 March 31,2013 interest rate (%) Mty April 1, 2012 March 31, 2013
(Unit: million yen) (Unit: million US dollars)

Current portions of long-term
DOMTOWINGS ..v.vevevecveeveeceeseeeseeee e 2 30,001 241 - 0 318
Current portions of lease obligations... 491 1,679 - - 5 17
Long-term borrowings September 2014 -
(excluding current portion) .............. 380,325 350,905 2.8 perpetual 4,043 3,731
Lease obligations April 2014 -
(excluding current portion) .............. 1,190 5,878 - August 2018 12 62

Lo} - 382,010 388,465 - - 4,061 4,130

Note: 1. Those borrowings and lease obligations above are included in the “other liabilities” on the consolidated balance sheet.
2. The average interest rate represents the weighted-average rate applicable to the balance as of March 31, 2013. As for lease obligations, description is
omitted since interest method is applied.
3. The following table shows the maturities of long-term borrowings (excluding the current portion or those without maturities) and lease obligations
(excluding the current portion) for the 5 years subsequent to March 31, 2013:

Due after one year Due after two years Due after three years Due after four years
through two years through three years through four years through five years
(Unit: million yen)
Long-term borrowings.............. 1 21,888 0 0
Lease obligations ..........ccc...... 1,610 1,455 1,221 1,193
Due after one year Due after two years Due after three years Due after four years
through two years through three years through four years through five years
(Unit: million US dollars)
Long-term borrowings.............. 0 232 0 0
Lease obligations ........c...c.c..... 17 15 12 12
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15. Securities Borrowing
Securities borrowed under borrowing agreements can be sold or pledged as collateral. As of March 31, 2012, the
Group held no securities borrowed which were not sold or pledged as collateral. As of March 31, 2013, the market
value of the securities borrowed which were not sold or pledged as collateral was ¥9,644 million (US$102 million).

16. Organizational Change Surplus
As of March 31, 2012 and March 31, 2013, the amounts of DL’s organizational change surplus stipulated in Article 91
of the Insurance Business Act were ¥117,776 million and ¥117,776 million (US$1,252 million), respectively.

IV. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF EARNINGS

1. Operating Expenses
Details of operating expenses for the years ended March 31, 2012 and 2013 were as follows:

Year ended March 31,

2012 2013 2013

(Unit: million

(Unit: million yen) US dollars)

Sales aCtiVity EXPENSES ..c.c.uuiiiiiie et 192,206 202,657 2,154
Sales Management EXPENSES ......ceevrueeerireeerireeesiseeessseesssseessssseesses 71,604 70,947 754
General management EXPENSES. .......ouvvirrrrerierieeeree e seeesieeseeeseee e 207,250 212,814 2,262

2. Gains on Disposal of Fixed Assets
Details of gains on disposal of fixed assets for the years ended March 31, 2012 and 2013 were as follows:

Year ended March 31,

2012 2013 2013

(Unit: million

(Unit: million yen) US dollars)

LaNG ..o 1,293 3,265 34
BUIIAINGS ...t e 294 5,609 59
Other tangible fixed assets...........ccoooiiiiiiiiiiiii e, 1 4 0
Other @SSEES .uuviiiiiiiie et s sre e 5 - -

L= L OSSP 1,595 8,880 94

3. Losses on Disposal of Fixed Assets
Details of losses on disposal of fixed assets for the years ended March 31, 2012 and 2013 were as follows:

Year ended March 31,

2012 2013 2013

s Unit: million

(Unit: million yen) (US dollars)
(=T oo USROS 790 3,976 42
BUIINGS .ttt 829 837 8
Leased aSSELS ..ouuiiiiiiie et 3 1 0
Other tangible fixed @sSets........ccceriiiiiiiiiieeeee e 308 295 3
SOFIWAIE ..ttt et 86 110 1
Other intangible fixed assets........cccviiiiiiineireeee 100 581 6
Other @SSEES ....ueiiiiiiiieee et 512 546 5
o] - USSR 2,631 6,350 67
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4. Impairment Losses on Fixed Assets
Details of impairment losses on fixed assets for the years ended March 31, 2012 and 2013 were as follows:

a) Method of Grouping Assets
Real estate and other assets used for insurance business purposes are recognized as one asset group. Each
property for rent and property not in use, which is not used for insurance business purposes, is deemed to be an
independent asset group.

b) Background for Recognition of Impairment Losses
As a result of significant declines in profitability or market value of some asset groups, DL wrote down the book
value of these assets to the recoverable value, and reported such write-off as impairment losses in extraordinary
losses.

c) Breakdown of Impairment Losses
Impairment losses by asset group for the year ended March 31, 2012 were as follows:

Asset Group Place Number Impairment Losses
Land Buildings Total
(Unit: million yen)
Real estate for rent  Tomakomai City, Hokkaido and others 5 378 467 845

Ashigara-kami County, Kanagawa

Prefecture and others 92 28,929 3,605 32,534

Real estate not in use

Total 97 29,307 4,072 33,379

Impairment losses by asset group for the year ended March 31, 2013 were as follows:

Asset Group Place Number Impairment Losses
Land Land
Leasehold Leasehold
Land Rights  Buildings Total Land Rights  Buildings Total
(Unit: million yen) (Unit: million US dollars)

Real estate Fujisawa City,

Kanagawa Prefecture 2 125 501 687 1,315 1 5 7 13
for rent

and others
Rea.l estate Nagoya City, Aichi 42 1437 _ 375 1813 15 _ 3 19
not in use Prefecture and others
Total 44 1,563 501 1,063 3,128 16 5 11 33

d) Calculation of Recoverable Value
Value in use or net sale value is used as the recoverable value of real estate for rent, and net sale value is used
as the recoverable value of real estate not in use. Discount rates of 2.81% and 2.73% for the years ended March
31, 2012 and 2013, respectively, were applied for discounting future cash flows in the calculation of value in use.
Estimated disposal value, appraisal value based on real estate appraisal standards, or appraisal value based on
publicly assessed land value for tax purposes is used as the net sale value.
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V. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

The amount reclassified and tax effect amounts related to other comprehensive income were as follows:
Year ended March 31,

2012 2013 2013
s Unit: million
(Unit: million yen) (US dollars)
Net unrealized gains (losses) on securities, net of tax
Amount incurred during the year..........cccoeoeriiee e 289,877 1,006,123 10,697
Amount reclassified.......cccuviviiiiiiiien 34,331 (117,516) (1,249)
Before tax adjustment ........cccceeveiieiccee e, 324,209 888,607 9,448
Tax effect (79,299) (272,706) (2,899)
Net unrealized gains (losses) on securities, net of tax......... 244,910 615,900 6,548
Deferred hedge gains (losses)
Amount incurred during the year.........cccccoveiiiiiieinicniene. (2,817) (2,352) (25)
Amount reclassified.......cccoceeeiie i (75) (190) 2
Amount adjusted for asset acquisition cost.............cccceveueennee. 901 - -
Before tax adjustment ...........ccoeeeieeiicee e (1,991) (2,542) (27)
TaX €ffECt .. 704 784 8
Deferred hedge gains (I0SSES) .....cveeeereeereieeeeiiee e (1,287) (1,757) (18)
Reserve for land revaluation
Amount incurred during the year.........ccccceveeeiiieeeee e, - - -
Amount reclassified ..o - - -
Before tax adjustment . - - -
TaX €ffECt e 16,861 97) 1)
Reserve for land revaluation............ccccceeevinieiiinniinieecieens 16,861 (97) (1)
Foreign currency translation adjustments
Amount incurred during the year.............cccoeciviieiienninnceeen, (4,207) 23,904 254
Amount reclassified...........ccccue.... - - -
Before tax adjustment (4,207) 23,904 254
TaX €ffECt cuuveiiiiie e - - -
Foreign currency translation adjustments ..........ccccccceeneee. (4,207) 23,904 254
Share of other comprehensive income of subsidiaries and affiliates
accounted for under the equity method
Amount incurred during the year..........ccccoecveviicieiiicienieee 300 3,254 34
Amount reclassified........cccoeeieiee i (905) (113) 1)
Share of other comprehensive income of subsidiaries and
affiliates accounted for under the equity method................ (604) 314 33
Total other comprehensive iINCOME......uuiiiiiiieieieiiiiiiieeees 255,673 641,091 6,816

VI. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

1. For the Year Ended March 31, 2012

(1) Type and Number of Shares Outstanding
Year ended March 31, 2012

At the beginning  Increase during  Decrease during At the end
of the year the year the year of the year
(Unit: thousands of shares)
Common StOCK......ccceveiieee e 10,000 - - 10,000
Treasury Stock @ ..o 139 - 26 113

(*) 26 thousand shares of decrease in treasury stock represents the sum of a) shares granted to eligible employees at retirement by the Stock Granting Trust
(J-ESOP) under DL’s incentive program granting middle management the purchased shares and b) shares sold to the Dai-ichi Life Insurance Employee Stock
Holding Partnership by the Trust Fund for Dai-ichi Life Insurance Employee Stock Holding Partnership under DL’s Trust-type Employee Shareholding Incentive
Plan (E-Ship®).

(2) Stock Acquisition Rights

Balance as of March 31, 2012

Issuer Details (Unit: million yen)

DL Stock acquisition rights in the form of stock options 150
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(3) Dividends on Common Stocks

a) Dividends paid during the fiscal year ended March 31, 2012

Date of resolution
Type of shares
Total dividends ©
Dividends per share
Record date
Effective date
Dividend resource

June 27, 2011 (at the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders)
Common stocks

¥15,776 million

¥1,600

March 31, 2011

June 28, 2011

Retained earnings

(*) Total dividends did not include ¥223 million of dividends to the J-ESOP trust and the E-ship trust, as DL recognized the shares held by those

trusts as treasury shares.

b) Dividends paid during the fiscal year ended March 31, 2013

Date of resolution
Type of shares
Total dividends ©
Dividends per share
Record date
Effective date
Dividend resource

June 25, 2012 (at the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders)
Common stocks

¥15,818 million

¥1,600

March 31, 2012

June 26, 2012

Retained earnings

(*) Total dividends did not include ¥181 million of dividends to the J-ESOP trust and the E-ship trust, as DL recognized the shares held by those

trusts as treasury shares.

2. For the Year Ended March 31,

2013

(1) Type and Number of Shares Outstanding

Year ended March 31, 2013

Common stock (M .......occeeiieeeeceecieens
Treasury Stock (2 ........cceeviiiiiiieeeee

At the beginning  Increase during  Decrease during At the end
of the year the year the year of the year
(Unit: thousands of shares)
............ 10,000 0 - 10,000
............ 113 - 22 90

(*1) 0 thousand shares of increase in common stock represents the exercise of stock acquisition rights.
(*2) 22 thousand shares of decrease in treasury stock represents the sum of a) shares granted to eligible employees at retirement by the J-ESOP under DL’s

incentive program granting middle management

the purchased shares and b) shares sold to the Dai-ichi Life Insurance Employee Stock Holding Partnership by

the Trust Fund for Dai-ichi Life Insurance Employee Stock Holding Partnership under the E-Ship®.

(2) Stock Acquisition Rights

Issuer

Balance as of March 31, 2013

Details (Unit: million yen)

DL Stock acquisition rights in the form of stock options 379 (US$4 million)

(3) Dividends on Common Stocks

a) Dividends paid during the fiscal year ended March 31, 2013

Date of resolution
Type of shares

Total dividends ©
Dividends per share
Record date
Effective date
Dividend resource

June 25, 2012 (at the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders)
Common stocks

¥15,818 million (US$168 million)

¥1,600 (US$17.01)

March 31, 2012

June 26, 2012

Retained earnings

(*) Total dividends did not include ¥181 million (US$1 million) of dividends to the J-ESOP trust and the E-ship trust, as DL recognized the shares
held by those trusts as treasury shares.

b) Dividends, the record date of which was March 31, 2013, to be paid out in the year ending March 31, 2014

Date of resolution
Type of shares
Total dividends ©
Dividends per share
Record date
Effective date
Dividend resource

June 24, 2013 (at the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders to be held)
Common stocks

¥15,855 million (US$168 million)

¥1,600 (US$17.01)

March 31, 2013

June 25, 2013

Retained earnings

(*) Total dividends did not include ¥145 million (US$1 million)of dividends to the J-ESOP trust and the E-ship trust, as DL recognized the shares held
by those trusts as treasury shares.
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VII. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Reconciliations of cash and cash equivalents to balance sheet accounts as of March 31, 2012 and 2013 were as follows:
As of March 31,

2012 2013 2013
R (Unit: million
(Unit: million yen) US dollars)
Cash and cash depositS.......ccoovuiiiriiiiniiiiiierieee s 315,187 457,517 4,864
(@72 1| I8 o= 1o T S 249,200 391,200 4,159
Cash and cash equivalents ..........cooooiriiiiienieee s 564,387 848,717 9,024

VIil. LEASE TRANSACTIONS

1. Finance Leases (As lessee)

(1) Acquisition cost, accumulated depreciation and net carrying amount of finance leases accounted for in the same
manner applicable to ordinary operating leases as of March 31, 2012 were as follows:

Tang;b;:éxed Total
(Unit: million yen)
P Yoo [ £ 1 oY g I o7 1= SR 1,146 1,146
1,016 1,016

Accumulated depreciation ...
Net carrying amount..........coeoiiiieiie e 129

Note: 1. Acquisition cost is calculated by the interest-payable-including-method, as the obligations under the finance leases represent a low percentage of tangible

fixed assets.
2. There was no such finance lease as of March 31, 2013.

129

(2) Obligations under finance leases accounted for in the same manner applicable to ordinary operating leases as of
March 31, 2012 and 2013 were as follows:

As of March 31,
2012 2013 2013
(Unit: million yen) (Bgtagg:’z;
DU Within ONE Y AT ....cciii ittt 129 - -
DuUE after ONE YA .......oii et - - -
o €= R PRTPPRRN 129 - -

Note: Obligations under the finance leases are calculated by the interest-payable-including-method, as the obligations under the finance leases represent a low
percentage of tangible fixed assets.
(3) Total payments for finance leases accounted for in the same manner applicable to ordinary operating leases and
depreciation for years ended March 31, 2012 and 2013 were as follows:
Year ended March 31,

2012 2013 2013
R (Unit: million
(Unit: million yen) US dollars)
Total payments for the finance leases.........ccoccevvveeneiieinienieeseeeee, 232 - -
232 - -

DEPIreCIatioN ....co.eeeeeeiee et

(4) Calculation method of depreciation
Depreciation for leased assets is calculated over the lease term by the straight-line method assuming zero salvage

value.

2. Operating Leases (As lessee)
Future minimum lease payments under noncancellable operating leases as of March 31, 2012 and 2013 were as follows:

As of March 31,

2012 2013 2013
N (Unit: million
(Unit: million yen) US dollars)
Due Within ONE YEar......cociiiiiie e 1,623 3,117 33
DuUe after ONE YA .......ciiiiieeeeee et 8,181 21,157 224
L] ¢ SRRSO UUPRURPN 9,804 24,274 258
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IX. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND OTHERS

1. Financial Instruments

(1) Policies in Utilizing Financial Instrument
In an effort to manage our investment assets in a manner appropriate to our liabilities which arise from the
insurance policies we underwrite, we engage in asset liability management, or ALM, which considers the long-term
balance between assets and liabilities to ensure stable returns. With this strategy, DL and certain of its consolidated
subsidiaries hold fixed income investments, including bonds and loans, as the core of their asset portfolio. While
placing its financial soundness first, DL also holds stocks and foreign securities within its tolerable risk to enhance
its profitability and facilitate diversification of investment risks.

DL and certain of its consolidated subsidiaries use derivatives primarily to hedge market risks associated with
their existing asset portfolio and supplement our investment objectives, taking into account the exposure of
underlying assets. Moreover, they utilize derivatives to mitigate the risks associated with guaranteed minimum
maturity benefits of individual variable annuity insurance.

With respect to financing, DL has raised capital directly from the capital markets by issuing subordinated bonds
and securitizing subordinated loans as well as indirectly from banks in order to strengthen its capital base and
to invest such capital in growing areas. To avoid impacts from interest-rate fluctuations, DL utilizes derivative
transactions in hedging some of such financial liabilities and adopts hedge accounting.

(2) Financial Instruments Used and Their Risks
Securities included in financial assets of DL and certain of its consolidated subsidiaries, mainly stocks and bonds,
are categorized by their investment objectives such as held-to-maturity, policy-reserve-matching and available-
for-sale. Those securities are exposed to market fluctuation risk, credit risk, and interest-rate risk and some of
the securities denominated in foreign currency are exposed to foreign currency risk. Also, loans are exposed to
credit risk arising from the defaults of obligors. DL and certain of its consolidated subsidiaries might be exposed to
liquidity risk in certain circumstance in which they cannot access the financial market and make timely payments of
principal, interest or other amounts. Also, some of their loans payable and bonds payable which are floating interest
rate based and denominated in foreign currency are exposed to interest-rate risk and foreign currency risk.

They utilize interest rate swaps to hedge interest rate risk associated with certain of their loans receivable and
payable and adopt hedge accounting.

In addition, they utilize a) equity forward contracts to hedge market fluctuation risks associated with domestic
stocks, and b) foreign currency forward contracts, currency options and foreign currency swaps to hedge foreign
currency risks associated with certain foreign currency-denominated bonds, foreign currency-denominated short-
term deposits and foreign currency-denominated debts, etc. and adopt hedge accounting.

In applying the hedge accounting, in order to fulfill requirements stipulated in the “Accounting Standards for
Financial Instruments” (ASBJ Statement No. 10 issued on March 10, 2008), DL and certain of its consolidated
subsidiaries have established investment policy and procedure guidelines and clarified the risk of underlying assets
to be hedged and derivative instruments to be used, and conducted pre- and post-effectiveness tests of the
transactions.

(3) Risk Management
The risk management system of DL and certain of its domestic consolidated subsidiaries is as follows:

a) Market risk management
Under the internal investment policy and market risk management policy, they manage market risk by conducting
mid- to long-term asset allocation in a manner appropriate to their liabilities. Therefore, they categorize their
portfolio into sub-groups, based on their investment purpose, and manage them taking into account each of their
risk characteristics.
i) Interest rate risk
They keep track of interest rates and durations of their assets and liabilities, monitor their internal analyses on
duration gap and interest rate sensitivity, and periodically report their findings to their board of directors, etc.
i)y Currency risk
They keep track of currency composition of their financial assets and liabilities, conduct sensitivity analyses,
and periodically report their findings to their board of directors, etc.
iii) Fluctuation in market values
They define risk management policies for each component of their overall portfolio, including securities, and
specific risk management procedures. In such policies and procedures, they set and manage upper limits of
each asset balance and risk exposure.
Such management conditions are periodically reported by their risk management sections to their board of
directors, etc.
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iv) Derivative transactions
For derivative transactions, they have established internal check system by segregating (a) executing
department, (b) the department which engages in assessment of hedge effectiveness, and (c) the back-office.
Additionally, in order to limit speculative use of derivatives, they have put restrictions on utilization purpose,
such as hedging, and establish position limits for each asset class.

They also utilize derivatives in order to reduce the risk associated with guaranteed minimum maturity
benefits of individual variable annuities. In accordance with their internal regulations to manage the risks
associated with their guaranteed minimum maturity benefits, they (a) assess hedge effectiveness of derivative
transactions, (b) manage gains and losses from derivative transactions on a daily basis, and (c) periodically
check their progress on reducing the risk associated with their guaranteed minimum maturity benefits and
measure estimated losses based on VaR (value-at-risk).

The risk management sections are in charge of managing overall risks including risks associated with their
guaranteed minimum maturity benefits, and periodically report the status of such management to their board of
directors, etc.

b) Credit Risk Management
In accordance with the internal investment policy and credit risk management procedure guidelines, they have
established a credit management system related to loans, such as preliminary reviews on individual transactions,
credit limit setting, credit information management, internal credit rating, attachment of guarantees and collateral,
and follow-ups on problem loans. For corporate bond investment, the credit section sets investment caps on
individual issuers taking into account internal credit ratings and other factors. Excessive risk taking is restricted
since front offices make investment within those caps. That credit management has been conducted by the credit
and risk management sections, and has been periodically reported to their board of directors, etc. Additionally,
the internal audit section has also checked credit management status.

Credit risk of security issuers and counterparty risk with respect to derivative transactions are managed by the
credit section, which sets upper limits for each counterparty and financial instrument and periodically monitors
credit information, and by the risk management section, which periodically monitors current exposures.

In each of certain overseas consolidated subsidiaries, an investment committee established by their board of
directors develops its investment policy, and periodically checks the compliance and the status of each risk, thus
enabling the subsidiaries to manage their risks in conformity with the risk characteristics.

(4) Supplementary Explanation for Fair Value of Financial Instruments
As well as the values based on market prices, fair value of financial instruments includes values which are
reasonably calculated in case market prices do not exist. As the calculation of those values adopts certain
assumptions, those values may vary in case different assumptions are applied. Also, for the contract value
regarding derivative transactions described in “Fair Value of Financial Instruments”, the contract value itself does
not indicate market risk related to derivative transactions.

2. Fair Value of Financial Instruments
The carrying amount on the consolidated balance sheet, fair value and differences between carrying amount and fair
value as of March 31, 2012 and 2013 were as follows.
The following tables do not include financial instruments whose fair value is extremely difficult to recognize (please
refer to Note 2).

As of March 31, 2012

Carrying amount Fair value Gains (losses)
(Unit: million yen)
(1) Cash and depPOSItS......ceeuerrrriierriereierriireeee e e erereeee e 315,187 315,204 17
(2) Call loans ......ccceveereunenens 249,200 249,200 -
(3) Monetary claims bought..........cccoerciieiiiiiiiee e 294,324 294,324 -
(4) Money held in truSt ......eeeeeieeceiieeee e e 48,266 48,266 -
(5) Securities
a. Trading SECUNMHIES ....uuvrrreeeeeeeceireeeeeeeceeee e e e e e e e e 2,581,400 2,581,400 -
b. Held-to-maturity bonds .........cccooiiiiiieeeiiiiiieeeeeeeee 135,828 141,079 5,250
c. Policy-reserve-matching bonds.........ccccveeeeriericieeeeennnn. 8,375,688 8,898,007 522,318
d. Stocks of subsidiaries and affiliated companies.............. 1,932 1,932 -
e. Available-for-sale securities.........ccceevevvieeieniieenieeeieeeennens 14,761,239 14,761,239 -
(5) o= g TSRS 3,413,620
Reserves for possible loan 10sses *V.........ccceceineeriieniiennns (8,812)
3,404,808 3,498,821 94,013
TOLAl @SSELS ..uuuuuuruunreeiiiieeeieeee e e e e e e ee e e eeeeeeeeeeeseeeeeeeaaaaaans 30,167,876 30,789,476 621,599
(1) BONAS Payable.........cuveeeeeeieeeeiieeeeececereee e e e e eeeneeeee e e eeeanes 148,652 155,194 6,542
(2) Long-term borrowings..........coccveeeieeereeiieeressienes e 380,327 367,611 (12,716)
Total i@bilitIES ..veerueeeeeeeeeeeiee e 528,980 522,805 (6,174)
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As of March 31, 2012

Carrying amount Fair value Gains (losses)

(Unit: million yen)
Derivative transactions *?

a. Hedge accounting not applied..........cccceereeeereeerieennennnens [14,235] [14,235] -
b. Hedge accounting applied [138,756] [137,321] 1,434
Total derivative transactions [152,992] [151,557] 1,434

(*1) Excluding general reserves for possible loan losses and specific reserves for possible loan losses related to loans.
(*2) Credits/debts from derivative transactions are presented on a net basis. Figures in [] are net debts.

As of March 31, 2013

Carrying Gains Carrying Gains
amount Fair value (losses) amount Fairvalue (losses)
(Unit: million yen) (Unit: million US dollars)
(1) Cash and deposits... 457,517 457,534 17 4,864 4,864 0
(2) Call 108NS ..eneeeeeeiieeieeiee e 391,200 391,200 - 4,159 4,159 -
(3) Monetary claims bought...........cccccuvennee 285,082 285,082 - 3,031 3,031 -
(4) Money held in trust ......ccceeeeecceveeeeeeeeenens 56,251 56,251 - 598 598 -
(5) Securities
a. Trading Securities .......ccccceveerecueeeenns 2,906,496 2,906,496 - 30,903 30,903 -
b. Held-to-maturity bonds ............c...... 142,267 147,965 5,698 1,512 1,573 60
c. Policy-reserve-matching bonds........ 10,794,851 12,005,334 1,210,483 114,777 127,648 12,870
d. Stocks of subsidiaries and affiliated
COMPANIES ...eeeeeeeeeeeeereeerreeseeeeneeas 29,768 34,541 4,773 316 367 50
e. Available-for-sale securities............. 14,409,040 14,409,040 - 153,206 153,206 -
(6) LOANS ...ttt 3,140,990 33,397
Reserves for possible loan losses *V.... (3,172) (33)
3,137,817 3,262,315 124,497 33,363 34,687 1,323
Total aSSetS.....cevveeereeeriieeiieeee e 32,610,293 33,955,763 1,345,470 346,733 361,039 14,305
(1) Bonds payable.........coceereeereeeneenieenen 154,584 170,107 15,522 1,643 1,808 165
(2) Long-term borrowings...........cccceeeveeeenne 380,907 377,110 (3,796) 4,050 4,009 (40)
Total liabilities ........coeeereerreeneeeeeeen. 535,491 547,218 11,726 5,693 5,818 124
Derivative transactions *?
a. Hedge accounting not applied.......... [16,818] [16,818] - [178] [178] -
b. Hedge accounting applied ............... [161,207] [160,279] 928 [1,714] [1,704] 9
Total derivative transactions................. [178,025] [177,097] 928 [1,892] [1,883] 9

1) Excluding general reserves for possible loan losses and specific reserves for possible loan losses related to loans.
2) Credits/debts from derivative transactions are presented on a net basis. Figures in [] are net debts.

¢
¢

Note 1: Notes to Methods for Calculating Fair Value of Financial Instruments, Securities and Derivative Transactions

Assets

(1) Cash and deposits
As for deposits with maturities, except for those which are close to maturity, present value is calculated by
discounting the carrying amount for each segment based on the term, using a deposit interest rate which is
assumed to be applied to new deposit. As for deposits close to maturity and deposits without maturity, fair value is
based on the carrying amount since fair value is close to the carrying amount.

(2) Call loans
Since all call loans are close to due date and their fair value is close to carrying amounts, fair value of call loans is
based on their carrying amount.

(3) Monetary claims bought
Fair value of monetary claims bought is based on the reasonably calculated price.

(4) Money held in trust
The fair value of stocks is based on the price on stock exchanges and that of bonds is based on the price on bond
markets or price presented by counterparty financial institutions. The fair value of mutual funds is based on unit price.

For details on derivative transactions of money held in trust, please refer to XIl. DERIVATIVE TRANSACTIONS.

(5) Securities
The fair value of stocks is based on the price on stock exchanges and that of bonds is based on the price on bond
markets or price presented by counterparty financial institutions. The fair value of mutual funds is based on unit
price. As for ownership stakes in partnerships, the amount equivalent to partnership interest in fair value of the
partnership assets is recorded as fair value of the stake in the partnership. Additionally, notes for the securities for
each investment purpose are described in X. SECURITIES.
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(6) Loans
The fair value of loans is calculated by discounting future cash flows of the subject loan, using interest rates
corresponding to the internal credit rating and remaining period which are assumed to be applied to new loans to
the subject borrower.

Additionally, for risk-monitored loans, reserve for possible loan losses is calculated based on the present value
of estimated future cash flows or the amount deemed recoverable from collateral and guarantees and the fair value
is close to the carrying amount on the balance sheet minus reserve for possible loan losses at the end of the fiscal
year. Therefore, that amount (the carrying amount on the balance sheet minus reserve for possible loan losses) is
recorded as the fair value of risk-monitored loans.

Also, loans without a due date because of their characteristics that their exposure is limited to the amount of their
collaterals, are deemed to have fair value close to book value, taking into account estimated repayment period and
interest rates. Therefore, their book value is recorded as the fair value.

Liabilities

(1) Bonds payable (subordinated bonds)
The fair value of bonds issued by DL is based on the price on the bond market.

(2) Long-term borrowings
The fair value of long-term borrowings is calculated by discounting future cash flows, using interest rates
corresponding to internal credit rating and remaining periods which are assumed to be applied to new borrowing.
Also, certain of long-term borrowings are deemed to have fair value close to book value, taking into account interest
rates. Therefore, their book value is recorded as the fair value.

Derivative Instruments

For details on derivative transactions, please refer to Xll. DERIVATIVE TRANSACTIONS.

Note 2: Financial instruments whose fair value is extremely difficult to recognize are as follows and are not
included in the fair value of (5) Securities in Note 1

As of March 31,

2012 2013 2013

Carrying amount

R Unit: million
(Unit: million yen) (US dollars)
1. Unlisted domestic Stocks *M2 ..o 160,745 156,513 1,664
2. Unlisted foreign stocks N2 ... 16,459 18,208 193
3. Other foreign securities %2 ... 916,996 846,824 9,003
4. Other SeCUItieS *NM2 ..o ceee et e e eae e s e eaee s ssneeesenes 88,502 86,992 924
o) <= | RO PRTRPPRRNE 1,182,703 1,108,539 11,786

(*1) These securities cannot be assigned a market value because of unavailability of tradable markets, and they are excluded from disclosure of market value

information.
(*2) DL recorded impairment charges of ¥830 million for the year ended March 31, 2012 and ¥79 million (US$0 million) for the year ended March 31, 2013.

Note 3: Scheduled redemptions of monetary claims and securities with maturities

As of March 31, 2012

Duein 1 year Due after 1 year Due after 5 years Due after

or less through 5 years through 10 years 10 years
(Unit: million yen)
(715 1 - TaTo e [=Y o To 1Y 1 - SRR 314,687 300 200 -
(O7= 1118 [ Y=o TN 249,200 - - -
Monetary claims bought ..........eeeeeeieiiciiiieeee e 919 11,425 900 262,691
Money held in trust ® ..o 483 - - -
Securities:
Held-to-maturity bonds (DONdS) .......cceeeueereeeeeeiciirieeee e e - 50,400 - 47,900
Held-to-maturity bonds (foreign securities).........cc.ccevreineennnnes - 41,095 - -
Policy-reserve-matching bonds (boNnds) ........cceeeceveeeereerecuennns 16,136 620,386 236,695 7,453,470
Policy-reserve-matching bonds (foreign securities).................. - 23,000 31,767 3,674
Available-for-sale securities with maturities (bonds)................. 202,497 1,684,551 2,379,342 2,775,935
Available-for-sale securities with maturities (foreign securities) .. 127,631 1,619,116 1,047,553 1,805,067
Available-for-sale securities with maturities (other securities) ... 39,733 24,426 17,321 23,099
(o = 3 SRR 387,432 1,177,273 793,054 472,117

(*1) Money held in trust without maturities amounted to ¥47,783 million was not included.
(*2) Loans for which interest or principal payments cannot be forecasted, such as credit to bankrupt obligors, substantially bankrupt obligors and obligors at risk of
bankruptcy, amounted to ¥17,993 million were not included. Also, ¥565,239 million of loans without maturities were not included.
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As of March 31, 2013
Duein 1 year Due after 1 year Due after 5 years Due after

or less through 5 years through 10 years 10 years
(Unit: million yen)
Cash and dEPOSItS ...cuuevreeeeer i e s 457,317 - 200 -
(=11 o 7= g 1= 391,200 - - -
Monetary claims bought - 15,205 - 252,825
Securities:
Held-to-maturity bonds (DoNdSs) ........ccccueeeeeieriiiiiieeeen s 50,400 - - 47,900
Held-to-maturity bonds (foreign securities).........cccccevereerecnenen 47,025 - - -
Policy-reserve-matching bonds (bonds) 136,948 565,330 253,637 9,647,065
Policy-reserve-matching bonds (foreign securities).................. - 32,162 132,770 3,231
Available-for-sale securities with maturities (bonds)................. 438,773 1,581,922 1,276,565 2,279,645
Available-for-sale securities with maturities (foreign securities) .. 67,446 1,900,757 1,248,028 1,725,624
Available-for-sale securities with maturities (other securities) ... 4,653 54,200 26,378 21,993
LOBNS ) ..ttt ettt et s ne e s eaneeeeaa 329,587 1,088,960 735,600 478,220

As of March 31, 2013
Duein 1 year Due after 1 year Due after 5 years Due after

or less through 5 years through 10 years 10 years
(Unit: million US dollars)
(07T 0 IF- TaTo e (=Y o To 1= | - SRR 4,862 - 2 -
(O7= 1118 [ Y=o TN 4,159 - - -
Monetary claims bought - 161 - 2,688
Securities:
Held-to-maturity bonds (DONdS) ........ccceeeiiiireiiieinciieeeceee e 535 - - 509
Held-to-maturity bonds (foreign securities).........cccccvereerecuenns 500 - - -
Policy-reserve-matching bonds (bonds) 1,456 6,010 2,696 102,573
Policy-reserve-matching bonds (foreign securities).................. - 341 1,411 34
Available-for-sale securities with maturities (bonds)................. 4,665 16,820 13,573 24,238
Available-for-sale securities with maturities (foreign securities) .. 717 20,210 13,269 18,347
Available-for-sale securities with maturities (other securities) ... 49 576 280 233
(oY= T g Fo RSN 3,504 11,578 7,821 5,084

(*) Loans for which interest or principal payments cannot be forecasted, such as credit to bankrupt obligors, substantially bankrupt obligors and obligors at risk
of bankruptcy, amounted to ¥6,615 million (US$70 million) were not included. Also, ¥501,548 million (US$5,332 million) of loans without maturities were not
included.

Note 4: Scheduled maturities of bonds and long term borrowings
As of March 31, 2012

Duein 1 year or Due after 1 year Due after 2 years Due after 3 years Due after 4 years Due after
less through 2 years through 3 years through 4 years through 5 years 5 years
(Unit: million yen)
Bonds payable " ............... - 41,095 - - - -
Long term borrowings *2.... 2 30,002 1 19,098 0 0

(*1) ¥107,562 million of bonds payable without maturities were not included.
(*2) ¥331,221 million of long term borrowings without maturities were not included.

As of March 31, 2013

Due in 1 year or Due after 1 year Due after 2 years Due after 3 years Due after 4 years Due after
less through 2 years through 3 years through 4 years through 5 years 5 years
(Unit: million yen)
Bonds payable *V ............... 47,025 - - - - -
Long term borrowings 2.... 30,001 1 21,888 0 0 0
As of March 31, 2013
Due in 1 year or Due after 1 year Due after 2 years Due after 3 years Due after 4 years Due after
less through 2 years through 3 years through 4 years through 5 years 5 years
(Unit: million US dollars)
Bonds payable *" ............... 500 - - - - -
Long term borrowings *2.... 318 0 232 0 0 0

(*1) ¥107,562 million (US$1,143 million) of bonds payable without maturities were not included.
(*2) ¥329,014 million (US$3,498 million) of long term borrowings without maturities were not included.
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X. SECURITIES

1. Trading Securities
As of March 31,

2012 2013 2013
(Unit: million yen) (Ldgt;g;g'rz)n
Gains (losses) on valuation of trading securities .........cccceeceeeeiieennnees 89,603 315,317 3,352
2. Held-to-maturity Bonds
As of March 31, 2012
Carrying Market Unrealized
amount value gains (losses)
(Unit: million yen)
Held-to-maturity securities with unrealized gains:
(1) BONAS ..o 94,524 96,999 2,474
a. Government bonds. . 94,524 96,999 2,474
(2) Foreign securities .........ccceveeeeieenne 41,303 44,079 2,775
a. Foreign bonds.......cccccccviniiennnee 41,303 44,079 2,775
Total...oooeeieeeeeeeeeeee 135,828 141,079 5,250
As of March 31, 2013
Carrying Market Unrealized Carrying Market Unrealized
amount value gains (losses) amount value gains (losses)
(Unit: million yen) (Unit: million US dollars)
Held-to-maturity securities with unrealized gains:
(1) BONAS ..o 95,131 99,341 4,210 1,011 1,056 44
a. Government bonds.................... 95,131 99,341 4,210 1,011 1,056 44
(2) Foreign securities .........cccoeeeeieenne 47,135 48,623 1,487 501 516 15
a. Foreign bonds.. . 47,135 48,623 1,487 501 516 15
Total....ccoeeeeeeciecieeeieenee, 142,267 147,965 5,698 1,512 1,573 60

3. Policy-reserve-matching Bonds
As of March 31, 2012

Carrying Market Unrealized
amount value gains (losses)

(Unit: million yen)
Policy-reserve-matching bonds with unrealized gains:

(1) BONAS vt 8,015,770 8,538,824 523,053
a. Government bonds..........ccceee.. 7,528,520 8,032,442 508,921
b. Local government bonds........... 192,491 199,446 6,955
c. Corporate bonds........ccccceeueennee 294,758 306,935 12,177

(2) Foreign Securities.. . 37,160 37,668 507
a. Foreign bonds........cooeevivieeennnnn. 37,160 37,668 507

Subtotal.....ccveoeeiieeee 8,052,931 8,576,493 523,561

Policy-reserve-matching bonds with unrealized losses:

(1) BONAS e 299,937 298,892 (1,044)
a. Government bonds...........ccce..... 295,694 295,054 (639)
b. Local government bonds........... - - -
c. Corporate bonds..........ccoceeueene 4,243 3,838 (404)

(2) Foreign Securities.......cccccoveeeennnn. 22,819 22,621 (198)
a. Foreign bonds.........cccocevvenneenne 22,819 22,621 (198)

Subtotal.......ccecereriiiiiieceee, 322,757 321,514 (1,242)
Total...ooeeeeeereeeereeens 8,375,688 8,898,007 522,318
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As of March 31, 2013

Carrying
amount

Market
value

Unrealized
gains (losses)

Carrying
amount

Market Unrealized
value gains (losses)

(Unit: million yen)

Policy-reserve-matching bonds with unrealized gains:

(Unit: million US dollars)

(1) BONAS ..oeieieeeeeieeeeeee e 10,609,565 11,817,208 1,207,642 112,807 125,648 12,840
a. Government bonds..........ccceenee 10,040,231 11,223,444 1,183,212 106,754 119,334 12,580
b. Local government bonds........... 186,673 194,066 7,392 1,984 2,063 78
c. Corporate bonds........cccceevueeeennee 382,660 399,697 17,036 4,068 4,249 181

(2) Foreign securities ..........cceeeeeveenee 112,533 116,216 3,682 1,196 1,235 39
a. Foreign bonds.. . 112,533 116,216 3,682 1,196 1,235 39

Subtotal.....cceveeiieeeeeen 10,722,099 11,933,424 1,211,325 114,004 126,883 12,879

Policy-reserve-matching bonds with unrealized losses:

(1) BONGS .ot 12,218 12,046 (171) 129 128 0]
a. Government bonds.........cccc.ee.. - - - - -

b. Local government bonds........... 201 201 0) 2 2 0)
c. Corporate bonds........cccceeeueennee 12,017 11,845 (171) 127 125 (1)

(2) Foreign securities ..........cceeeecenenne 60,533 59,863 (669) 643 636 (7)

a. Foreign bonds.........cccoceeveennene 60,533 59,863 (669) 643 636 7)
Subtotal......cocceeiiiiieeieeeee 72,752 71,910 (841) 773 764 8)
Total...oooeieieieeiieeiees 10,794,851 12,005,334 1,210,483 114,777 127,648 12,870

4. Available-for-sale Securities

As of March 31, 2012

Carrying
amount

Purchase
cost

Unrealized
gains (losses)

(Unit: million yen)

Available-for-sale securities with unrealized gains:

(1) BONAS ..o 7,078,074 6,794,699 283,375
a. Government bonds..........ccee.e. 5,184,182 4,972,746 211,435
b. Local government bonds........... 121,595 116,314 5,281
c. Corporate bonds........cccceecveeennee 1,772,296 1,705,638 66,658

(2) Domestic StOCkS.......cceveerereiiens 1,355,047 889,514 465,533

(3) Foreign securities .........cccceereiueennn. 4,334,987 4,117,939 217,048
a. Foreign bonds........cccocervvenene 4,187,956 3,991,235 196,720
b. Other foreign securities ... . 147,031 126,703 20,327

(4) Other securities .......cccceeecveeeenennnn. 330,546 306,526 24,019

Subtotal......cccceeieniieeieeeee 13,098,657 12,108,680 989,976

Available-for-sale securities with unrealized losses:

(1) BONAS ..ot 273,060 286,468 (13,407)
a. Government bonds.......c.cceennnee 96,634 96,715 (80)
b. Local government bonds........... 4 4 0)
c. Corporate bonds. . 176,422 189,749 (13,326)

(2) Domestic StoCKS......ccvvvevverennnenn. 617,513 785,222 (167,709)

(3) Foreign securities ........cccccceeeeuneenn. 1,003,037 1,098,264 (95,226)
a. Foreign bonds.........cccocevveennenne 708,774 762,126 (58,351)
b. Other foreign securities ............. 294,263 336,138 (41,875)

(4) Other securities . 78,294 89,691 (11,396)

Subtotal......cooceeriieieeeeee 1,971,907 2,259,647 (287,740)
Total..coeeeeeeece e, 15,070,564 14,368,327 702,236

Note: Figures in the above table include (1) certificates of deposit and (2) trust beneficiary rights, which were recorded as cash and deposits and monetary claims
bought on the consolidated balance sheet, respectively. The aggregate purchase cost and carrying amount of such certificates of deposits were ¥15,000
million and ¥15,000 million, respectively, as of March 31, 2012. The aggregate purchase cost and carrying amount of trust beneficiary rights were ¥275,893

million and ¥294,324 million, respectively, as of March 31, 2012.
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As of March 31, 2013

Carrying Purchase Unrealized
amount cost gains (losses)

Carrying
amount

Purchase Unrealized
cost gains (losses)

(Unit: million yen)
Available-for-sale securities with unrealized gains:

(Unit: million US dollars)

(1) BONAS ..o 5,805,653 5,377,103 428,550 61,729 57,172 4,556
a. Government bonds..........c.c....... 3,910,382 3,565,845 344,536 41,577 37,914 3,663
b. Local government bonds........... 112,261 106,992 5,269 1,193 1,137 56
c. Corporate bonds........cccceeveeennee 1,783,009 1,704,265 78,743 18,958 18,120 837

(2) Domestic stocKkS......ccveeeeeerecnennn. 1,930,168 1,196,220 733,948 20,522 12,718 7,803

(3) Foreign securities .. .. 5,389,343 4,847,380 541,963 57,302 51,540 5,762
a. Foreign bonds..........cocvviieenieene 4,932,803 4,469,456 463,346 52,448 47,522 4,926
b. Other foreign securities ............. 456,540 377,923 78,616 4,854 4,018 835

(4) Other securities .......cccceeeceeeernenn. 421,434 379,921 41,513 4,480 4,039 441

ST0] o] (o} -1 13,546,600 11,800,625 1,745,975 144,036 125,471 18,564

Available-for-sale securities with unrealized losses:

(1) BONAS ..eveeeeeeeeeeee e 227,149 231,317 (4,167) 2,415 2,459 (44)
a. Government bonds................... 111,560 112,084 (524) 1,186 1,191 5)
b. Local government bonds........... 102 103 0) 1 1 0)
c. Corporate bonds.........ccccceeueene 115,486 119,128 (3,642) 1,227 1,266 (38)

(2) Domestic StOCKS......ccvvrerveeeennnn. 320,107 410,668 (90,560) 3,403 4,366 (962)

(8) Foreign securities .......ccccceveenueene 546,369 588,794 (42,424) 5,809 6,260 (451)
a. Foreign bonds.................. 399,680 425,932 (26,252) 4,249 4,528 (279)
b. Other foreign securities ............. 146,689 162,861 (16,172) 1,559 1,731 (171)

(4) Other securities ........ccooerverceeenns 88,894 91,914 (3,019) 945 977 (32)

Subtotal.......ccceeeeeeeeeeeeeceee s 1,182,521 1,322,694 (140,172) 12,573 14,063 (1,490)
Total...ccoeeeeeeeeecieeceiee, 14,729,122 13,123,319 1,605,803 156,609 139,535 17,073

Note: Figures in the above table include (1) certificates of deposit and (2) trust beneficiary rights, which were recorded as cash and deposits and monetary claims
bought on the consolidated balance sheet, respectively. The aggregate purchase cost and carrying amount of such certificates of deposits were ¥35,000
million (US$372 million) and ¥34,999 million (US$372 million), respectively, as of March 31, 2013. The aggregate purchase cost and carrying amount of trust
beneficiary rights were ¥267,993 million (US$2,849 million) and ¥285,082 million (US$3,031 million), respectively, as of March 31, 2013.

5. Held-to-maturity Bonds Sold

DL and its consolidated subsidiaries sold no held-to-maturity bonds during the years ended March 31, 2012 and

2013.

6. Policy-reserve-matching Bonds Sold

Policy-reserve-matching bonds sold during the years ended March 31, 2012 and 2013 were as follows:

Year ended March 31, 2012

Amounts Realized Realized
sold gains losses
(Unit: million yen)
(1) BONAS ..oeeieiiieeieeeeeeeee e 812,327 47,817 -
a. Government bonds.................... 812,327 47,817 -
Total...ooooeeccieeecciieeeee, 812,327 47,817 -

Year ended March 31, 2013

Amounts Realized Realized Amounts Realized Realized
sold gains losses sold gains losses
(Unit: million yen) (Unit: million US dollars)

(1) BONAS ... 694,578 39,613 2,830 7,385 421 30
a. Government bonds.................... 694,578 39,613 2,830 7,385 421 30
(2) Foreign securities .........cccceveeeceeene 9,887 1,384 - 105 14 -
a. Foreign bonds.......ccccccceiviieennee 9,887 1,384 - 105 14 -
Total. .o 704,466 40,997 2,830 7,490 435 30
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7. Available-for-sale Securities Sold
Available-for-sale securities sold during the years ended March 31, 2012 and 2013 were as follows.

Year ended March 31, 2012

Amounts Realized Realized
sold gains losses
(Unit: million yen)

(1) BONAS ..o 1,645,408 44,429 8,802
a. Government bonds..........cccee..e. 1,415,930 37,775 4,119
b. Local government bonds........... - - -
c. Corporate bonds. 229,477 6,654 4,682

(2) Domestic stocKS......ccveeeveerecnennn. 298,115 55,516 55,177

(8) Foreign securities .........cccceeeeueenn. 4,071,073 93,900 116,737
a. Foreign bonds......ooovvuveeeennnn. 4,034,770 90,075 108,993
b. Other foreign securities ............. 36,302 3,824 7,743

(4) Other securities ........ccceveeeeereeenn. 17,332 17,956 -

Total.oooeeieeeeeceeiees 6,031,928 211,801 180,717

Year ended March 31, 2013

Amounts Realized Realized Amounts Realized Realized
sold gains losses sold gains losses
(Unit: million yen) (Unit: million US dollars)

(1) BONAS ..oeveeieeieceeee e 2,323,245 65,869 329 24,702 700 3
a. Government bonds.........ccccueeee 2,139,462 61,634 271 22,748 655 2
b. Local government bonds........... 6,556 70 0 69 0 0
c. Corporate bonds........cccccecuveenes 177,226 4,164 57 1,884 44 0

(2) Domestic Stocks.......ccccveeiereiiene 146,388 28,272 22,832 1,556 300 242

(3) Foreign securities ..........cccveeeeieenne 2,869,685 91,315 40,210 30,512 970 427
a. Foreign bonds............... .. 2,823,505 87,980 29,588 30,021 935 314
b. Other foreign securities ............. 46,180 3,335 10,622 491 35 112

(4) Other securities ........cccceecuveeeeuneenn. 1,737 132 - 18 1 -

Total.oooeeeeeeeieeiee e 5,341,057 185,589 63,373 56,789 1,973 673

8. Securities Written Down

DL and its consolidated subsidiaries write down the balance of certain available-for-sale securities with market values
(1) when the market value of such securities declines by 50%, or more, of its purchase cost or (2) when the market
value of such securities without a certain level of creditworthiness declines by 30% or more, but less than 50%, of its
purchase cost unless it is deemed that there is a possibility that the fair value of the security could recover to equal or
exceed the purchase cost. The aggregate amounts written down from the balance of available-for-sale securities with
market value for the year ended March 31, 2012 and 2013 were ¥43,882 million and ¥3,131 million (US$33 million),
respectively.

XI. MONEY HELD IN TRUST

Money Held in Trust for Trading
As of March 31,

2012 2013 2013
R (Unit: million
(Unit: million yen) US dollars)
Carrying amount on the consolidated balance sheet ............c.cceuee. 48,266 56,251 598
Gains (losses) on valuation of money held in trust.......cc.cccooceriennnenne (14,507) (12,130) (128)
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XIl. DERIVATIVE TRANSACTIONS

1. Derivative Transactions (Hedge Accounting Not Applied)

(1) Currency-related transactions

As of March 31, 2012

(A) Notional Over 1 year
amount/ included
contract value in (A)

(Unit: million yen)

Fair Gains
value (losses)

Over-the-counter transactions:
Foreign currency forward contracts:

1S Te] o ISP 436,729 - (15,755) (15,755)
U.S. dollar......ccccceeveeeieniinnne 260,489 - (9,743) (9,743)
Euro....cccceeeee .. 97,106 - (4,894) (4,894)
Australian dollar.........cccccce... 36,769 - (102) (102)
Canadian dollar ........ccccceeeennen 19,478 - (20) (20)
British pound..........cccoceiieenne 14,579 - (814) (814)
Others....ccoviveriereenee 8,305 - (180) (180)

Bought.....coeiiiiiiieeee 242,580 - 1,581 1,581
U.S. dollar.......ccooeeeveeeiiane 116,470 - 628 628
EUMO . 62,163 - 1,154 1,154
Australian dollar..........ccccceeue 32,628 - (334) (334)
Canadian dollar .......c.cccceeeeunenn 16,974 - ()] 2
British pound.........cooeiieeines 6,124 - 85 85
Others.....ccoeeeveeeceecieceeeeen 8,219 - 50 50

Currency swaps
Receipts yen, payments foreign

CUITENCY ..eerereeernenen. 1,560 1,560 171) (171)
Australian dollar 1,560 1,560 71) (171)
Currency options
Bought:
PUb e 110,876
[1,674] - 14 (1,659)
EUrO...eei e 110,876
[1,674] - 14 (1,659)
L[] £- | (16,005)

Note: 1. (1) Forward exchange rates at the end of the year are used for fair value calculation of foreign currency forward contracts.

(2) Fair value of currency swaps is calculated by discounting expected cash flows.

(3) An option pricing model is used for fair value calculation of currency options.

2. Figures in [ ] are option premiums which are included in the consolidated balance sheet.

3. Fair value for forward contracts and swaps, and differences between the option premiums paid/received and fair value of the option for option

transactions, are shown in “Gains (losses)”.
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As of March 31, 2013

(A) Notional ~ Over 1 year (A) Notional Over 1 year

amount/ included Fair Gains amount/ included Fair Gains
contract value in (A) value (losses) contract value in (A) value (losses)
(Unit: million yen) (Unit: million US dollars)
Over-the-counter transactions:
Foreign currency forward contracts:

SOld e 1,414,300 - (16,530) (16,530) 15,037 - (175) (175)
U.S. dollar........cceceerveeennnen. 741,240 - (13,625) (13,625) 7,881 - (144) (144)
EUFO oo 265,344 - (2,345) (2,345) 2,821 - (24) (24)
Australian dollar... 71,327 - (376) (376) 758 - 3) (©)]
British pound.................... 48,783 - (442) (442) 518 - 4) 4)
Canadian dollar ................ 22,717 - 0 0 241 - 0 0
Others......covveeiierieeeeees 264,885 - 258 258 2,816 - 2 2

Bought......coooeiiiiiiiiiiieeee 1,168,220 - (653) (653) 12,421 - 6) (6)
U.S. dollar.......ccccceerveeennnen. 576,066 - 1,109 1,109 6,125 - 11 11
EUFO oo 205,113 - (1,915)  (1,915) 2,180 - (20) (20)
Australian dollar... 59,030 - 5 5 627 - 0 0
British pound.................... 33,812 - 269 269 359 - 2 2
Canadian dollar ................ 24,927 - 67 67 265 - 0 0
Others......covveeiieiieeiiees 269,268 - (189) (189) 2,863 - (2 ()

Currency swaps:

Receipts yen, payments

foreign currency .........cccee.... 1,560 1,560 (506) (506) 16 16 ) 5)
Australian dollar... 1,560 1,560 (506) (506) 16 16 (5) 5)

Total ..eeeeeiieeeiieeees (17,690) (188)

Note: 1. (1) Forward exchange rates at the end of the year are used for fair value calculation of foreign currency forward contracts.
(2) Fair value of currency swaps is calculated by discounting expected cash flows.
2. Fair value is shown in “Gains (losses)”.

(2) Interest-related transactions
As of March 31, 2012

(A) Notional ~ Over 1 year
amount/ included
contract value in (A)

(Unit: million yen)

Fair Gains
value (losses)

Exchange-traded transactions:
Interest rate futures:

Over-the-counter transactions:
Yen interest rate swaps:
Receipts fixed, payments floating.. 21,800 17,500 566 566
Receipts floating, payments fixed.. 7,500 7,500 (129) (129)
Total .eeeeeeeceeee 439
Note: 1. (1) Fair value of interest rate futures listed above is based on the closing exchange-traded prices.

(2) Fair value of yen interest rate swaps listed above is present value of expected cash flows, discounted by the interest rates at the end of the year.
2. Fair value is shown in “Gains (losses)”.
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As of March 31, 2013

(A) Notional Oyer 1 year Fair Gains (A) Notional Oyer 1 year Fair Gains
amount/ |ngluded value  (losses) amount/ |ngluded value  (losses)
contract value in (A) contract value in (A)
(Unit: million yen) (Unit: million US dollars)
Exchange-traded transactions:
Interest rate futures:
S Te] o ISR 23,451 - 3) 3) 249 - 0) 0)
Over-the-counter transactions:
Yen interest rate swaps:
Receipts fixed, payments floating.. 18,010 14,510 498 498 191 154 5 5
Receipts floating, payments fixed.. 3,700 3,700 (74) (74) 39 39 0) (0)]
Total .eeeeeeeeeeeeee e 420 4

Note: 1. (1) Fair value of interest rate futures listed above is based on the closing exchange-traded prices.
(2) Fair value of yen interest rate swaps listed above is present value of expected cash flows, discounted by the interest rates at the end of the year.

2. Fair value is shown in “Gains (losses)”.

(3) Stock-related transactions

As of March 31, 2012

Notional .
amount/ Fair value Gains
contract value (losses)
(Unit: million yen)
Exchange-traded transactions:
Yen stock index futures:
SOId e 10,146 411) (411)
Bought......oooiiieeeeeee 4,100 56 56
Foreign currency-denominated
stock index futures:
S To] o IR 14,052 97) 97)
Stock index options:
Bought:
PUL e 109,913
[4,202] 71 (4,130)
Total...ccoveieieeeeece e (4,583)

Note: 1. Fair value listed above is based on the closing exchange-traded prices.

2. Figures in [ ] are option premiums which are included in the consolidated balance sheet.
3. Fair value for futures and differences between the option premiums paid/received and fair value of the option, are shown in “Gains (losses)”.

4. There were no transactions with maturity of more than one year in the table above.

As of March 31, 2013

Notional . Notional .
. Gains . Gains
amount/ Fair value amount/ Fair value
(losses) (losses)
contract value contract value
(Unit: million yen) (Unit: million US dollars)
Exchange-traded transactions:
Yen stock index futures:
4,285 (14) (14) 45 0) )
8,779 255 255 93 2 2
Foreign currency-denominated
stock index futures:
4,398 (27) (27) 46 0) ©
5,740 1) 1) 61 0) 0)
212 2

Note: 1. Fair value listed above is based on the closing exchange-traded prices.
2. Fair value is shown in “Gains (losses)”.
3. There were no transactions with maturity of more than one year in the table above.
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(4) Bond-related transactions
As of March 31, 2012

Notional
amount/ Fair value
contract value

(Unit: million yen)

Gains
(losses)

Exchange-traded transactions:
Yen bond futures:
SOl 11,099 23 23
Foreign currency-denominated
bond futures:
SOl e 21,911 66 66
Over-the-counter transactions:
Bond OTC options:

Sold:
Call.eeeeeeeeeeee e 3,010
(3] 4 ©)
PUt e 20,007
[41] 62 (20)
Bought
(O || SRR 20,007
[21] 8 (12)
PUL e 102,993
[1,192] 5 (1,187)
Total...ooeeeeeeeeereeeeee (1,131)

Note: 1. (1) Fair value of yen bond futures and foreign bond futures is based on the closing exchange-traded prices.
(2) Fair value of bond OTC options is based on the prices quoted from information vendors.
2. Figures in [] are option premiums which are included in the consolidated balance sheet.
3. Fair value for futures and differences between the option premiums paid/received and fair value of the option, are shown in “Gains (losses)”.
4. There were no transactions with maturity of more than one year in the table above.

As of March 31, 2013
Notional Notional

amount/ Fair value Gains amount/ Fair value Gains
contract value (losses) contract value (losses)
(Unit: million yen) (Unit: million US dollars)
Exchange-traded transactions:
Yen bond futures:
SOId e 12,759 (40) (40) 135 0) 0
Bought ..o 41,654 92 92 442 0 0
Foreign currency-denominated
bond futures:
[STo] o TR 2,985 (10) (10) 31 ) 0)
Yen bond futures options
Sold
PUt o 42,850 455
[17 24 (6) [0] 0 0)
Over-the-counter transactions:
Bond OTC options:
Sold:
(O || R 6,175 65
[22] 81 (59) [0] 0 0)
PUL e 65,258 693
[80] 46 34 [0] 0 0
Bought
[ || S 65,258 693
[58] 319 260 [0] 3 2
PUL e 6,175 65
[27] 29 1 [0] 0 0
Total..eeeeeeeeceeeee e, 271 2

Note: 1. (1) Fair value of yen bond futures, foreign bond futures and yen bond futures options is based on the closing exchange-traded prices.
(2) Fair value of bond OTC options is based on the prices quoted from information vendors.
2. Figures in [] are option premiums which are included in the consolidated balance sheet.
3. Fair value for futures and differences between the option premiums paid/received and fair value of the option, are shown in “Gains (losses)”.
4. There were no transactions with maturity of more than one year in the table above.
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(5) Others
DFLI utilizes derivative transactions within its money held in trust for trading purposes and foreign securities
(investment trust). Details of the derivative transactions are as follows:

a) Currency-related transactions
As of March 31, 2012

Notional

amount/ Fair value Gains
contract value (losses)
(Unit: million yen)
Exchange traded transactions:
Currency futures:

SOl e 15,344 (238) (238)
(Euro / U.S. dollar) .....ccccceereennen. 10,679 (139) (139)
(British pound / U.S. dollar)......... 4,664 (99) (99)

Bought......oooiiiieieeeeee e 31,744 (230) (230)
(Yen /U.S. dollar)........cccceeruennen. 31,744 (230) (230)

Over-the-counter transactions:
Foreign currency forward contracts:

SOl .. 89,219 (5,109) (5,109)
U.S. dollar........coeceeeieeeieeeneeeeenn. 44,413 (2,395) (2,395)
EUFO e 20,955 (1,385) (1,385)
British pound........ccooociiiiiiiene 6,065 (423) (423)
Canadian dollar ... 6,032 (345) (345)
Australian dollar.........cccceeeeeeennnee 5,905 (189) (189)
Others.....cccceeviieiiiiieieeec e, 5,846 (370) (370)

Total ..oooceeveeieiiiicc e (5,578)

Note: 1. (1) Fair value of currency futures listed above is based on the closing exchange-traded prices.
(2) Forward exchange rates at the end of the year are used for fair value calculation of foreign currency forward contracts.
2. Fair value is shown in “Gains (losses)”.
3. There were no transactions with maturity of more than one year in the table above.
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As of March 31, 2013
Notional . Gains Notional ' Gains
amount/ Fair value amount/ Fair value
contract value (losses) contract value (losses)
(Unit: million yen) (Unit: million US dollars)
Exchange traded transactions:
Currency futures:

SOl .. 31,272 (332) (332) 332 (©)] (K]
(Yen /U.S. dollar).......ccccceeruennee. 31,272 (332) (332) 332 (©)] 3

Bought......cooiiiiiiieeeceeee e, 15,317 (95) 95) 162 (1) 1)
(Euro / U.S. dollar) ....cceeeereennen. 10,649 (102) (102) 113 1) 1)
(British pound / U.S. dollar)......... 4,667 7 7 49 0 0

Over-the-counter transactions:
Foreign currency forward contracts:

SOl e 28,018 (146) (146) 297 1) 1)
U.S. dollar......cooeceeeenceeeneiiiennnns 15,872 (99) (99) 168 1) 1)
EUro ...coccoveeens 5,822 (32) (32) 61 (0)] (0)]
Canadian dollar ... 2,127 7) (7) 22 0) )
Australian dollar... 1,529 (10) (10) 16 0) 0)
British pound........ccccooeiiiniennenne 1,230 0 0 13 0 0
Others.....cccoveeveieiiiecieesieeeee 1,435 2 2 15 0 0

Total .eeeeeeeeeeeeeeee e (574) (6)

Note: 1. (1) Fair value of currency futures listed above is based on the closing exchange-traded prices.
(2) Forward exchange rates at the end of the year are used for fair value calculation of foreign currency forward contracts.
2. Fair value is shown in “Gains (losses)”.
3. There were no transactions with maturity of more than one year in the table above.
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b) Stock-related transactions
As of March 31, 2012

Notional f
. Gains
amount/ Fair value
(losses)
contract value
(Unit: million yen)
Exchange-traded transactions:
Yen stock index futures:
Yo 1 o 1 49,486 (1,882) (1,882)
Foreign currency-denominated
stock index futures:
1Yo o 1 43,483 (807) (307)
Total oo (2,189)

Note: 1. Fair value listed above is based on the closing exchange-traded prices.
2. Fair value is shown in “Gains (losses)”.
3. There were no transactions with maturity of more than one year in the table above.

As of March 31, 2013

Notional

Notional

amount/ Fair value Gains amount/ Fair value Gains
contract value (losses) contract value (losses)
(Unit: million yen) (Unit: million US dollars)
Exchange-traded transactions:
Yen stock index futures:
SOId e 11,846 (96) (96) 125 1) (1)
Bought......cooeiiiiiiieeeeeeeee e, 13,407 35 35 142 0
Foreign currency-denominated
stock index futures:
SOId e 9,045 (59) (59) 96 0) 0)
Bought.......cocoviiiiiiiiiiiiciiiceee, 13,595 3 3 144 0 0
Total oo (116) 1)

Note: 1. Fair value listed above is based on the closing exchange-traded prices. -n
2. Fair value is shown in “Gains (losses)”. 5
3. There were no transactions with maturity of more than one year in the table above. Y]
=
c) Bond-related transactions g
As of March 31, 2012 ;
Notional . D
. Q
amount/ Fair value (l(j:;r;ss) =
contract value g
(Unit: million yen)
Exchange-traded transactions:
Yen bond futures:
Bought......oooiiiieieeeee e 5,666 14 14
Foreign currency-denominated
bond futures:
113,718 444 444
458
Note: 1. Fair value listed above is based on the closing exchange-traded prices.
2. Fair value is shown in “Gains (losses)”.
3. There were no transactions with maturity of more than one year in the table above.
As of March 31, 2013
Notional Gains Notional Gains
amount/ Fair value amount/ Fair value
(losses) (losses)
contract value contract value
Unit: million yen Unit: million US dollars;
Y/
Exchange-traded transactions:
Yen bond futures:
Bought......cooeiiiiiiieiieeeeee, 29,031 60 60 308 0 0
Foreign currency-denominated
bond futures:
711 32,188 (123) (123) 342 ) )
Bought......cccocieiiiiiiiiiieeceece, 19,033 204 204 202 2 2
Total oo 141 1
Note: 1. Fair value listed above is based on the closing exchange-traded prices.
2. Fair value is shown in “Gains (losses)”.
3. There were no transactions with maturity of more than one year in the table above.
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2. Derivative Transactions (Hedge Accounting Applied)

(1) Currency-related transactions
As of March 31, 2012

(A) Notional
amount/
contract value

(Unit: million yen)

Over 1 year

included in (4) T air value

Fair value hedge:
Foreign currency forward contracts to hedge foreign currency-denominated

bonds:

S To] o [T 2,539,107 - (138,246)
U.S. dollar .....ccccevereeninceieene 1,604,010 - (88,623)
EUrO.c.oiiieeeee e, 671,205 - (87,535)
British pound.......ccccceeevveiinennne 131,637 - (7,461)
Australian dollar ..........ccccceeenes 96,993 - (1,243)
Canadian dollar........cccceeeveeenes 11,649 - (763)
Others ....occveveerieeeeceeeeeeee 23,610 - (2,618)

Bought ..coceiiiiieeeeee 7,761 - 64
U.S. dollar .....cocceeveeiirieiieeene 3,134 - 16
BUMO ..o 3,058 - 58
British pound........cccoeriiiriennnen. 1,568 - (10)

Foreign currency forward contracts, etc., allocated to and/or combined with
corresponding hedged items:
Foreign currency forward contracts to hedge foreign currency-denominated term

deposits:

SOl 205,203 - *)
Australian dollar ..........ccccceeeennes 135,212 - *
U.S. dollar .....cccceeeeeeneceeeeene 69,990 - *)

Currency swaps to hedge foreign currency-denominated bonds payable:

Receipts foreign currency,

payments yen. ... 107,562 107,562 *)
U.S. dollar .......cceevveeeinirciinnens 107,562 107,562 ()

Note: Forward exchange rates at the end of the fiscal year are used for fair value calculation.

(*) As foreign currency forward contracts and foreign currency swaps which apply the currency allotment method are accounted for as combined with foreign
currency-denominated term deposits and bonds payable as hedged items, their fair value is included in the fair value of such foreign currency-denominated term
deposits and bonds payable.

U0I}98S [eloueul4
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As of March 31, 2013

(A) Notional o (A) Notional
amount/ over ! year Fair value amount/ . Over year Fair value
contract value included in (A) contract value included in (A)
(Unit: million yen) (Unit: million US dollars)
Deferral hedge:
Currency swaps to hedge foreign currency-denominated bonds:

Receipts yen, payments

foreign currency .......ccceeevveeeeneene 9,877 9,877 (1,139) 105 105 (12)
U.S. dollar 9,877 9,877 (1,139) 105 105 (12)

Fair value hedge:
Foreign currency forward contracts to hedge foreign currency-denominated bonds:

1701 (o [T 2,427,927 - (145,161) 25,815 - (1,543)
U.S. dollar ... 1,481,780 - (138,325) 15,755 - (1,470)
Euro............. " 660,985 - (4,347) 7,028 - (46)
British pound...... 167,377 - (188) 1,779 - (1)
Australian dollar .... 62,762 - (1,348) 667 - (14)
Canadian dollar.. 14,290 - 17 151 - 0
Others ............ 40,731 - (968) 433 - (10)

Bought ......... 8,601 - 421 91 - 4
U.S. dollar 7,012 - 462 74 - 4
Euro............. 710 - (25) 7 - (©)]
British pound...... 440 - 7) 4 - (©)]
Australian dollar .... 131 - (1) 1 - 0)
(@1 1= - T 306 - (6) 3 - 0)

Foreign currency forward contracts, etc., allocated to and/or combined with corresponding hedged items:
Foreign currency forward contracts to hedge foreign currency-denominated term deposits:

[S1e][o IR 265,260 - (1) 2,820 - (*1)
Australian dollar . 180,277 - (*1) 1,916 - (*1)
U.S. dollar ......ccoervevereereeneeens 84,982 - (1) 903 - (*1)

Currency swaps to hedge foreign currency-denominated bonds payable:

Receipts foreign currency,

payments yen.......cocceveeenueeneeeneen. 107,562 107,562 (*2) 1,143 1,143 (*2)
U.S. dollar .......ccoeeeeeieenieiiees 107,562 107,562 (*2) 1,143 1,143 (*2)

Note: 1. Currency swaps: Fair value of currency swaps is calculated by discounting expected cash flows.
2. Foreign currency forward contracts: Forward exchange rates at the end of the fiscal year are used for fair value calculation.
(*1) As foreign currency forward contracts which apply the currency allotment method are accounted for as combined with foreign currency-denominated term
deposits as hedged items, their fair value is included in the fair value of such foreign currency-denominated term deposits.
(*2) As foreign currency swaps which apply the currency allotment method are accounted for as combined with foreign currency-denominated bonds payable
as hedged items, their fair value is included in the fair value of such foreign currency-denominated bonds payable.
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(2) Interest-related transactions
As of March 31, 2012

(A) Notional
amount/
contract value

(Unit: million yen)

Over 1 year

included in () " air value

Deferral hedge
Yen interest rate swaps to hedge loans payable:
Receipts floating, payments fixed ... 320,000 320,000 (573)
Special hedge accounting
Yen interest rate swaps to hedge loans:
Receipts fixed, payments floating ... 70,200 52,100 1,434
Note: Fair value listed above is present values of expected cash flows, discounted by the interest rates at the end of the fiscal year.

As of March 31, 2013

(A) Notional (A) Notional
Over 1 year . Over 1 year .
amount/ . f Fair value amount/ . f Fair value
included in (A) included in (A)
contract value contract value
(Unit: million yen) (Unit: million US dollars)

Deferral hedge
Yen interest rate swaps to hedge loans payable:
Receipts floating, payments fixed ... 320,000 320,000 (1,786) 3,402 3,402 (18)
Special hedge accounting
Yen interest rate swaps to hedge loans:
Receipts fixed, payments floating... 52,100 19,700 928 553 209 9

Note: Fair value listed above is present values of expected cash flows, discounted by the interest rates at the end of the fiscal year.

(3) Stock-related transactions
As of March 31, 2013

Notional Notional
amount/ Fair value amount/ Fair value
contract value contract value
(Unit: million yen) (Unit: million US dollars)

Fair value hedge
Equity forward contracts to hedge domestic stocks:
SOId.....iiveeceeee e 34,949 (13,541) 371 (143)

Note: 1. Fair value listed above is based on the market price of underlying assets, interest rates and expected dividends, etc.
2. There were no transactions with maturity of more than one year in the table above.
3. There was no such stock-related transaction as of March 31, 2012.
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Xlll. EMPLOYEES’ RETIREMENT BENEFITS

1. Overview of Employees’ Retirement Benefit Plan of the Group:
As a defined benefit plan for its sales representatives, DL has established and maintained a benefit plan consisting of
retirement lump sum grants and company administered pension.
As a defined benefit plan for its administrative personnel, DL has established and maintained a benefit plan
consisting of defined benefit corporate pension, retirement lump sum grants and defined contribution pension.
Certain consolidated subsidiaries maintain their benefit plan consisting of retirement lump sum grants and defined
benefit corporate pension.
As of April 1, 2013, DL transferred certain of its retirement lump sum grants to defined contribution pension.

2. Funding Status of Employees’ Retirement Benefits of the Group
As of March 31,

2012 2013 2013

. - Unit: million

(Unit: million yen) (US dollars)

a. Projected benefit obligations ...........cceveerieiiiiiieee e (665,149) (664,761) (7,068)
D. PeNnSiON @SSEIS ......uuiiiiieiiiiietiee e 209,541 235,369 2,502
Retirement benefit trust included in the above pension assets..... 102,682 120,596 1,282

c. Unfunded benefit obligations (@ + b) .......cccceveieiiiiieiiiiieeen (455,607) (429,392) (4,565)
d. Unrecognized actuarial differences.........cccccveevieeieiieninccenciieeeene 21,803 (10,344) (109)
e. Unrecognized gains/losses on plan amendments ...........ccceceeneeen. 12 2 0
f. Reserve for employees’ retirement benefits (C + d + €) ...cevcveneeen. (4383,791) (439,734) (4,675)

Note: Certain of its consolidated subsidiaries applied simplified methods in calculating their projected benefit obligations.
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3. Retirement Benefit Expenses
Year ended March 31,
2012 2013 2013
. - Unit: million
(Unit: million yen) (US dollars)
a. Service COSt (NOLE) ... .uvviiiiee e 26,053 25,968 276
D. INTErest COSt.... e 11,257 11,311 120
c. Estimated investment incCome..........ccceviviieneccien i (1,789) (1,803) (19)
d. Amortization of unrecognized actuarial differences...................... 13,356 5,907 62
e. Amortization of unrecognized gains/losses on plan amendments... 9 9 0
o OtNEIS. e s - 176 1
g. Retirement benefit expenses(@+b+c+d+e+f.iiiiiiinnnnn. 48,888 41,570 441
Note: Retirement benefit expenses of DL’s consolidated subsidiaries which apply simplified methods are included in the item “Service cost”.
4. Assumptions
Year ended March 31,
2012 2013
Method of periodic allocation of benefit obligations..............cccocu.ee. straight-line method straight-line method
DiISCOUNT FALE ...ttt 1.7 0or1.8% 110r1.7%
Estimated return on investment
a. Defined benefit corporate pension ...........ccccevveeiieenierienseeenne. 1.00r1.7% 1.00r1.7%
b. Retirement benefit trust...........ccoiiiii e 0.0% 0.0%
Amortization period for actuarial differences ...........ccccoceeveiriiiicnenne. 3 or 7 years 3 or7years
(Starting from the (Starting from the
following fiscal year under following fiscal year under

Amortization period for gains/losses on plan amendments...............

the straight-line method)
3 years
(Amortized under the

straight-|

the straight-line method)
3 years
(Amortized under the

ine method) straight-line method)

XIV. STOCK OPTIONS

The account used to record expenses associated with issuing stock options and the amount

expensed

Operating expenses for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2012: ¥150 million
Operating expenses for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2013: ¥244 million (US$2 million)

Details of the stock options granted for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2013

(1) Details of the stock options

1st Series of Stock Acquisition Rights

2nd Series of Stock Acquisition Rights

Granted persons

10 directors (except outside directors) and 16
executive officers of DL

11 directors (except outside directors) and 16
executive officers of DL

Class and total number )

1,698 shares of common stock

3,187 shares of common stock

Granted date

August 16, 2011

August 16, 2012

Vesting conditions

The acquisition rights are vested on the above
granted date.

The acquisition rights are vested on the above
granted date.

Service period covered

N/A

N/A

Exercise period

From August 17, 2011 to August 16, 2041

A granted person may exercise stock options
only within 10 days from the day following the
date on which she/he loses the status as both
a director and an executive officer of DL.

From August 17, 2012 to August 16, 2042

A granted person may exercise stock options
only within 10 days from the day following the
date on which she/he loses the status as both
a director and an executive officer of DL.

(*) The total number of stock options is translated to the number of common stocks for better understanding.
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(2) Figures relating to the stock options

The following table covers stock options which existed during the fiscal year ended March 31, 2013 and the total
number of stock options is translated to the number of common stock.

a) Number of the stock options

(shares)

1st Series of
Stock Acquisition Rights

2nd Series of
Stock Acquisition Rights

Before vesting

Outstanding at the end of prior fiscal year

Granted

3,187

Forfeited

Vested

3,187

Outstanding at the end of the fiscal year

After vesting

Outstanding at the end of prior fiscal year

1,698

Vested

3,187

Exercised

166

Forfeited

Outstanding at the end of the fiscal year

1,632

3,187

b) Price information

1st Series of
Stock Acquisition Rights

2nd Series of
Stock Acquisition Rights

Exercise price

¥1 per stock option

¥1 per stock option

Average stock price at the time of exercise

¥117,900

Fair value at the granted date

¥88,521

¥76,638

(1) Valuation method
Black-Scholes Model
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(2) Assumptions

3. Valuation method used for estimating fair value of stock options
Stock options granted for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2013 were valued as follows:

2nd Series of Stock Acquisition Rights
Expected volatility 39.504%
Expected durations @ 3 years
Expected dividends @ ¥1,600
Risk-free interest rate (4 0.096%

*

(
¢
(
(

4. Method to estimate the number of stock options vested
Only the actual number of forfeited stock options is considered, because it is difficult to rationally estimate the number

of stock options to be forfeited in the future.
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1) Computed based on the closing prices of common stock in each trading day from April 1, 2010 to August 15, 2012.
2) Computed based on the average service period from the granted date to expected exercise date.
*3) Computed based on the expected dividend for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2013.

4) Based on yields of Japanese government bonds for a term corresponding to the expected durations.




XV. DEFERRED TAX ACCOUNTING

1. Major components of deferred tax assets and liabilities as of March 31, 2012 and 2013

As of March 31,

2012 2013

2013

Deferred tax assets:

(Unit: million yen)

(Unit: million
US dollars)

Policy reserves and Others.........c.cooviieeieieeieeeeeee e 337,527 405,907 4,315
Reserve for employees’ retirement benefits ..........cccocceviiiiiiicnns 162,237 163,467 1,738
Reserve for price fluctuations..........ccccvevceeiecciienscie e 23,258 27,620 293
Losses on valuation of SECUNtIES.........cceeviiiieeiiiiicceceeceeee e 27,091 18,824 200
Tax losses carried forward 14,536 13,775 146
ONEIS ..ttt e ae e 37,197 32,828 349
SUBLOTAl .o 601,849 662,424 7,043
Valuation alloWaNCES ........ceeviueeeiiieeeceee e et e e e e e e nnees (60,007) (68,985) (733)
L) = PSSR 541,842 593,438 6,309
Deferred tax liabilities:
Net unrealized gains on securities, net of taX.........ccoccevieiiienieennes (222,978) (487,237) (5,180)
Other intangible fixed asSets ......cceviiieiiiiie s (12,882) (13,987) (148)
Reserve for tax basis adjustments of real estate...........cccccveeeneenn. (8,561) (9,222) (98)
Losses on valuation of securities (3,213) (7,142) (75)
ONEIS ..ttt ettt et e et e s e e e st e snbeesseesnreenseeens (19,362) (21,722) (230)
Lo = PRSPPI (266,998) (539,313) (5,734)
Net deferred tax asSets ........cccucviiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieccce e 274,843 54,125 575

2. The principal reasons for the difference between the statutory tax rate and actual effective tax rate

after considering deferred taxes are as follows:

As of March 31,

2012 2013
STATUTOTY TAX FALE....oiueiiiii et 36.09% 33.23%
(Adjustments)
Reversal of reserve for [and revaluation ............cccceoiiiriiniieciiene e (0.52%) (18.56%)
Increase in valuation alloWaNCES...........ceiiiiiririee e 6.75% 17.30%
Difference in tax rate associated with special corporate tax for reconstruction - 12.59%
Decrease in deferred tax assets in relation to change in tax rates ..........cccoccenivriennennne 50.12% -
[ 10T PP (3.98%) 2.73%
Actual effective tax rate after considering deferred taxes........ccoovrveiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieiiienenens 88.46% 47.29%

XVI. ASSET RETIREMENT OBLIGATIONS

1. Overview of Asset Retirement Obligations

DL recognized statutory or similar obligations associated with some of its real estate for rent and business use with

regard to the removal of (1) tangible fixed assets and (2) certain harmful substances in the tangible fixed assets and so

recorded the asset retirement obligation.

2. Calculation Method of Asset Retirement Obligations

DL calculated the asset retirement obligation by (1) estimating the period of service of each building between 0 and 37

years based on its contract term and useful life and (2) applying discount rates ranging from 0.144% to 2.294%.

The Dai-ichi Life Insurance Company, Limited
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3. Increase and Decrease in Asset Retirement Obligations
The following table shows the increase and decrease in asset retirement obligations:

Year ended March 31,

2012 2013 2013
R Unit: million
(Unit: million yen) (US dollars)
Beginning balance O..........cooiriieniiieee e 4,019 3,551 37
Time progress adjustments..........ccceviieei e 46 38 0
(@ =T TR UP SR PPR (514) (734) (7)
Ending balance 3,551 2,855 30

XVII. REAL ESTATE FOR RENT

DL owns a number of commercial buildings, including land, for rent in various locations including Tokyo. Net rental
income from such real estate for rent for the year ended March 31, 2012 and 2013 was ¥26,757 million and ¥24,807
million (US$263 million), respectively. The rental income was included in investment income and the rental expense was
included in investment expenses. DL recorded extraordinary loss of ¥7,945 million for impairment loss on rental real
estate for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2012 and that of ¥2,949 million (US$31 million) for the fiscal year ended March
31, 2013.

The carrying amount, net change during the year and the market value of such rental real estate were as follows:

Year ended March 31,

2012 2013 2013
. - Unit: million
(Unit: million yen) (US dollars)
Carrying amount
Beginning balance ..o 844,127 840,711 8,938
Net change during Year .........coceerieiieeieee e (3,416) (26,703) (283)
ENding balanCe......ccuiiiiiiieiiiie s 840,711 814,007 8,655
MarKEt VaAIUE ...ttt e e e e ennraeeees 819,920 768,069 8,166

Note: 1. The carrying amount of rental real estate on the consolidated balance sheet was acquisition costs net of accumulated depreciation and impairments.
2. Net change in carrying amount includes cost of acquisition of the real estate for ¥14,644 million and the depreciation expense of ¥15,069 million during the
year ended March 31, 2012 and cost of acquisition of the real estate for ¥26,014 million (US$276 million), sale of the real estate for ¥28,411 million (US$302
million) and the depreciation expense of ¥14,597 million (US$155 million) during the year ended March 31, 2013.
3. DL calculates the market value of the majority of the rental real estate based on real estate appraisal standards by an independent appraiser, and others
based on the internal but reasonable estimates.
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XVIIl. SEGMENT INFORMATION AND OTHERS

1. Segment Information
For the years ended March 31, 2012 and March 31, 2013
Overview of the reporting segments
The overview of the reporting segment has been omitted as DL on a consolidated basis did not operate any
businesses categorized in segments other than its own core life insurance business.

2. Other Related Information
For the years ended March 31, 2012 and March 31, 2013

(1) Product (Service) Segment Information
The product (service) segment information has been omitted as the Group’s operations consist of only one product
(service) segment.

(2) Geographic Segment Information
The geographic segment information has been omitted as more than 90% of the Group’s ordinary revenues and
tangible fixed assets derive from its business unit in Japan.

(3) Major Customer Information
The major customer information has been omitted as no single customer accounts for 10% or more of the Group’s
ordinary revenues.

3. Impairment Losses on Fixed Assets by Reporting Segment
For the years ended March 31, 2012 and March 31, 2013
The information on impairment losses on fixed assets by reporting segment has been omitted as the Group’s
operations consist of only one segment.
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Amortization of Goodwill and Unamortized Amount of Goodwill by Reporting Segment

For the year ended March 31, 2012 and March 31, 2013

The information on the amortization of goodwill and unamortized amount of goodwill by reporting segment has been
omitted as the Group’s operations consist of only one segment.

Gain on Negative Goodwill by Reporting Segment
For the years ended March 31, 2012 and March 31, 2013
Not applicable

Related Party Transactions
For the years ended March 31, 2012 and March 31, 2013
There are no significant transactions to be disclosed.

XIX. SPECIFIED PURPOSE COMPANIES

1. Securitization of Subordinated Obligations
DL securitized subordinated obligations to broaden the range of investors and to secure a stable base for raising
capital. For the securitization, DL utilized Tokutei Mokuteki Kaisha (“TMKs”, specified purpose companies) regulated
by the Asset Liquidation Act. TMKs raise capital by issuing specified company bonds backed by assets transferred to
the TMKSs by contributors of subordinated loans. DL holds non-voting shares in the Cayman-based special purpose
companies (“SPCs”), which in turn hold specified shares in the TMKs. DL monitors the TMKs’ financial situation
and appropriately recognizes such non-voting shares in accordance with the “Accounting Standard for Financial
Instruments” (ASBJ Statement No. 10 issued on March 10, 2008) regarding the non-voting preferred shares in its
financial statements.
The information of the TMK with which DL has transactions is as follows. DL held no ordinary shares in such TMK
and the TMK had no directors, officers, or employees transferred from DL.
As of March 31,
2012 2013 2013
R (Unit: million
(Unit: million yen) US dollars)
NUMDBEr Of TMKS ... s One entity One entity One entity
Total assets at the end of latest fiscal year .......cccceecevevcieeincieecceen. 30,359 30,359 322
Total liabilities at the end of latest fiscal year.........ccccceeeveeeiiiieecieenn. 30,087 30,087 319
The amounts involved in the principal transactions between DL and the TMK were as follows:
As of March 31,
2012 2013 2013
N Unit: million
(Unit: million yen) (US dollars)
Subordinated obligation ...........cccceiiiiiiiiiine 30,000 30,000 318
Year ended March 31,
2012 2013 2013
(Unit: million yen) (Bgtagglrz;
INTEreSt EXPENSES .....eviiiiiiiiiiece ettt 619 616 6
2. Investment in Securitized Real Estate

To diversify investments in real estate and stabilize its investment returns, DL had exposure to an investment project
to securitize real estate. DL invested in the SPCs under an anonymous association contract, etc. based on the
Commercial Code.

The investment in the anonymous association contract was accounted for based on the SPCs’ financial conditions
and the fair value of real estate owned by the SPCs in accordance with the “Accounting Standards for Financial
Instruments” (ASBJ Statement No. 10 issued on March 10, 2008). DL anticipates no obligation in the future to cover
possible losses of the SPCs. Even if the fair value of the real estate declines, the loss of DL is limited to the amount of
investment in the anonymous association contract.
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The information of the SPCs with which DL has transactions is as follows. As of March 31, 2012 and 2013, DL had
no management authority in the SPCs and the SPCs had no directors, officers, or employees transferred from DL.

As of March 31,

2012 2013 2013
R (Unit: million
(Unit: million yen) US dollars)
NUMDEN OFf SPCS ...ttt et aran s Three entities Two entities Two entities
Total assets at the end of latest fiscal year .........ccococeeeiiiiiiiieeeneenn. 139,037 124,403 1,322
Total liabilities at the end of latest fiscal year..........cccceeveeeiniieninenenn. 94,520 85,265 906
Note: For the fiscal year ended March 31, 2013, an SPC under the liquidation procedures is excluded from the above table.
The amounts involved in transactions between DL and the SPCs were as follows:
As of March 31,
2012 2013 2013
I (Unit: million
(Unit: million yen) US dollars)
Investment in anonymous association ..........ccoeceeeeiieeeiieen e 28,237 27,111 288
Preferred iNnVeStMENtS .......coeieiiieicee e 2,900 - -
Year ended March 31,
2012 2013 2013
T (Unit: million
(Unit: million yen) US dollars)
Dividends from investment in anonymous association............c.......... 2,044 2,118 22
Dividends from preferred investments ..........ccceveeeiiieiciiieeeen e 147 98 1

XX. PER SHARE INFORMATION
As of / Year ended March 31,

2012 2013 2013
(Unit: yen) (Unit: US dollars)
Net assets Per Share ........coeeeeeiiiiiec s 99,376.82 165,713.79 1,761.97
Net iNCOME PEr SNAre.........ooiiuieiiiee e 2,061.78 3,275.48 34.82
Diluted net income per share ..........coocce i 2,061.55 3,274.27 34.81

Note 1: Underlying basis for the calculation of the net income per share and the diluted net income per share was

as follows:
Year ended March 31,
2012 2013 2013
R (Unit: million
(Unit: million yen) US dollars)

Net income per share
NELINCOME ... naaes 20,357 32,427 344
Net income attributable to other than shareholders of
COMMON SEOCK ...etiiieiieiciiie e e et e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e anaeeees - - -

Net income attributable to shareholders of common stock........ 20,357 32,427 344
Average number of common stock outstanding © ...................... 9,873 thousand 9,900 thousand 9,900 thousand
shares shares shares

Diluted net income per share
Adjustments to Net iNCOME.....cccoiiiiiiiiiii e - - -

Increase in the number of common stock..........ccceeeieeiiiiennnnes 1 thousand 3 thousand 3 thousand
shares shares shares

[Increase in the number of common stock attributable to [1 thousand [3 thousand [3 thousand
subscription rights to shares]..........ccocceeviiiiinieeieeeeeeee shares] shares] shares]

Outline of the dilutive shares which are not counted in the basis
of calculation of diluted net income per share because they do
not have dilutive effect.........coorieiii s - - -

Note: (*) “Average number of common stock outstanding” in the above table excludes shares held by the J-ESOP or the E-Ship®.
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Note 2: Underlying basis for the calculation of the net assets per share was as follows:
As of March 31,

2012 2013 2013
N (Unit: million
(Unit: million yen) US dollars)
NEL ASSELS ...uerieiiiie e e 991,745 1,649,020 17,533
AUSTMENTS ...t 9,242 6,894 73
Subscription rights to shares.........cccccoiviieiniiiieceee 150 379 4
Minority INTErestS .....oceeiiiei s 9,091 6,514 69
Net assets attributable to commOon StOCK .......cccciiiiiiiiiiiiieiiiieesieeeans 982,503 1,642,125 17,460
Number of common stock outstanding O.........cccceeeererenenceeneneeene 9,886 thousand 9,909 thousand 9,909 thousand
shares shares shares

Note: (*) “Number of common stock outstanding” in the above table excludes shares held by the J-ESOP or the E-Ship®.

XXI. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

1. To help improve convenience and liquidity in securities markets in accordance with the “Action Plan for
the Consolidation of Trading Units” announced by all stock exchanges in Japan in November 2007, the
board of directors of DL held on May 15, 2013 passed a resolution to split 1 share of its ordinary shares
into 100 shares and, accordingly, amend the number of shares constituting one unit of DL’s ordinary
shares from 1 share to 100 shares effective on October 1, 2013.

If DL had split shares at the beginning of the fiscal year ended March 31, 2012, its per share
information for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2012 and 2013 is as follows:

Year ended March 31,

2012 2013 2013
(Unit: yen) (Unit: US dollars)
Net asSets PEr Share ........c.coooieiiiiiee e 993.77 1,657.14 17.61
Net iNCome Per Share. ..o 20.62 32.75 0.34
Diluted net income per share ... 20.62 32.74 0.34

2. OnJune 3, 2013, DL has concluded a contract on subscription of new shares of PT Panin Life (“Panin
Life”), an Indonesian life insurance company, and PT Panin Internasional (“Panin Internasional”), its
intermediate holding company, with PT Panin Financial Tbk (“Panin Financial”), the parent company of
these companies, Panin Internasional and Panin Life.

(1) Purpose of share acquisition
The investment in Panin Life is based on DL’s core growth strategy to enhance overseas life insurance businesses
and to enter into Indonesia, a promising life insurance market with the 4th largest population in the world.

Additionally, Panin Life is a life insurance subsidiary of Panin Financial, a leading financial corporation, which also

owns Panin Bank, one of the major banks in Indonesia. Panin Life has a number of distribution channels such as
agency, bancassurance, direct marketing and telemarketing, and by diversifying into other various sales channels;
Panin Life has successfully grown its underlying business performance in recent years. The investment in Panin
Life will bring added value for business growth of both DL and Panin Life, providing excellence to customers and
business partners.

(2) Name, business and size of acquired company

a) Name of the acquired company
PT Panin Life (*)

() By acquiring 5% of shares of Panin Life and 36.842% of shares of Panin Internasional, DL will effectively own 40% shares of Panin Life.

b) Business
Life insurance business

c) Size (as of December 31, 2012)
Total asset: 3,876.1 billion IDR (¥40.3 billion / US$0.4 billion) (*)
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(3) Number of shares acquired, amount to be invested and DL’s percentage of share holdings after completion of

the transaction

a) Number of shares acquired

Panin Internasional: 75,344,500 shares

Panin Life:

b) Amount to be invested

533,669,000 shares

3,300.0 billion IDR (¥34.3 billion / US$0.3 billion)

c) DL’s percentage of share holdings after completion of the transaction

Panin Internasional: 36.842%
Panin Life: 5%

(4) Others

Simultaneously, subject to obtaining relevant approvals from local authorities, Panin Life is expected to enter into a
long-term exclusive bancassurance agreement with Panin Bank.

(*) The exchange rate used to calculate the yen-denominated amount is 1 IDR = 0.0104 JPY.

XXIl. QUARTERLY INFORMATION

Three months Six months Nine months Year ended
ended June 30, ended September | ended December March 31, 2013
2012 30, 2012 31,2012
Ordinary revenues (million yen) 1,201,630 2,337,735 3,583,723 5,283,989
Incomfe (Io.ss). before income taxes. . 8,770 33.754 36,185 56,122
and minority interests (million yen)
Net income (loss) (million yen) 11,131 28,052 24,676 32,427
Net income (loss) per share (yen) 1,125.53 2,835.23 2,493.21 3,275.48
Three months Three months Three months Three months
ended June 30, ended September | ended December ended March 31,
2012 30, 2012 31,2012 2013
Net income (loss) per share (yen) 1,125.53 1,709.45 (340.94) 782.31
Three months Six months Nine months Year ended
ended June 30, ended September | ended December March 31, 2013
2012 30, 2012 31,2012
Ordinary revenues (million US dollars) 12,776 24,856 38,104 56,182
IncomIe (Io.ss). before incom.e.taxes 93 358 384 596
and minority interests  (million US dollars)
Net income (loss) (million US dollars) 118 298 262 344
Net income (loss) per share (US dollars) 11.96 30.14 26.50 34.82
Three months Three months Three months Three months
ended June 30, ended September | ended December ended March 31,
2012 30, 2012 31,2012 2013
Net income (loss) per share (US dollars) 11.96 18.17 (3.62) 8.31
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Independent Auditor’s Report

The Board of Directors
The Dai-ichi Life Insurance Company, Limited

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of The Dai-ichi Life Insurance Company,
Limited and its consolidated subsidiaries, which comprise the consolidated balance sheet as at March 31, 2013,
and the consolidated statements of earnings, comprehensive income, changes in net assets, and cash flows for
the year then ended and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information, all
expressed in Japanese yen.

Management’s Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements

Management is responsibie for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial statements
in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in Japan, and for designing and operating such
internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation and fair presentation of the
consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in Japan. Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated
financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error. The purpose of an audit of the consolidated financial statements is not to express an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control, but in making these risk assessments the auditor considers internal
controls relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. An audit also includes evaluating
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,
the consolidated financial position of The Dai-ichi Life Insurance Company, Limited and its consolidated
subsidiaries as at March 31, 2013, and their consolidated financial performance and cash flows for the year
then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in Japan.

Convenience Translation

We have reviewed the translation of these consolidated financial statements into U.S. dollars, presented for the
convenience of readers, and, in our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements have been
properly translated on the basis described in Note 1.

/émwtim M Lee

June 24, 2013
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